AMENDED
NOTICE OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE
LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES & TOWNS
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Friday, November 2, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.
League Office Building
1820 West Washington, Phoenix
Notice is hereby given to the members of the Executive Committee and to the general public that the Executive
Committee will hold a meeting open to the public on November 2, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. Members of the
Executive Committee will attend either in person or by telephone conference call. The Executive Committee
may vote to recess the meeting and move into Executive Session on any item on this agenda. Upon
completion of Executive Session, the Executive Committee may resume the meeting, open to the public, to
address the remaining items on the agenda. A copy of the agenda is available at the League office building in
Suite 200 or on the League website at www.azleague.org.

Agenda
All items on this agenda are scheduled for discussion and possible action, unless otherwise noted.

Call to Order; Pledge of Allegiance
1.

Review and Adoption of Minutes

2.

Legislative Policy Overview and Update

3.

Legal Update

4.

Recap of 2018 Annual Conference

5.

Cities and Towns Week 2018

6.

2017-2018 Audit Report; Audit Firm Contract

7.

League Director’s Report

8.

Resolutions of Appreciation

9.

Life Member Nomination

10.

Discuss Executive Director Ken Strobeck’s Performance Evaluation

Additional informational materials are included in the agenda packet but are not part of the agenda.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 2, 2018

Agenda Item #1

Review and Adoption of Minutes

Summary:

Minutes of the previous meeting are enclosed for your review and
approval.

Responsible Person:

President Christian Price

Attachment:

August 22, 2018 Executive Committee Minutes

Action Requested:

Approval

MINUTES
LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Wednesday, August 22, 2018 at 11:45 a.m.
The Phoenician Resort, Camelback H
6000 East Camelback Road, Scottsdale AZ 85251
MEMBERS
Georgia Lord, Mayor, Goodyear
Thomas L. Schoaf, Mayor, Litchfield Park
Ed Honea, Mayor, Marana
John Giles, Mayor, Mesa
Satish Hiremath, Mayor, Oro Valley*
Cathy Carlat, Mayor, Peoria
Thelda Williams, Mayor, Phoenix
W.J. "Jim" Lane, Mayor, Scottsdale
Daryl Seymore, Mayor, Show Low
Rick Mueller, Mayor, Sierra Vista
Sharon Wolcott, Mayor, Surprise
Mark Mitchell, Mayor, Tempe
Bob Rivera, Mayor, Thatcher
Jonathan Rothschild, Mayor, Tucson
Douglas Nicholls, Mayor, Yuma

President
Jay Tibshraeny, Mayor, Chandler
Vice President
Mark Nexsen, Mayor, Lake Havasu City
Treasurer
Christian Price, Mayor, Maricopa
Doug Von Gausig, Mayor, Clarkdale
Lana Mook, Mayor, El Mirage
Coral Evans, Mayor, Flagstaff
Linda Kavanagh, Mayor, Fountain Hills
Jenn Daniels, Mayor, Gilbert
Jerry Weiers, Mayor, Glendale
*Not in Attendance

President Jay Tibshraeny called the meeting to order at 11:48 a.m. He invited the Executive
Committee to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance.
President Jay Tibshraeny recognized Mayor Thelda Williams as Councilmember Danny
Valenzuela resigned from the Executive Committee. He then asked for a motion to appoint
Mayor Williams to fill the remaining term of the vacated seat.
Mayor Mark Mitchell moved to appoint Mayor Thelda Williams to the Executive Committee;
Mayor Jim Lane seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.
1. REVIEW AND ADOPTION OF MINUTES
Mayor Jonathan Rothschild moved to approve the minutes of the May 11, 2018 Executive
Committee Meeting; Mayor Rick Mueller seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.
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2. LEGISLATIVE POLICY OVERVIEW AND UPDATE
President Tibshraeny asks Ken Strobeck to introduce Legislative Director, Nick Ponder.
Mr. Ponder thanked league staff for their work this last session as well as league contract
lobbyist, Scott Smith. Mr. Ponder discussed the makeup of the legislature and noted the House
of Representatives is made up of 35 Republicans and 25 Democrats while the Senate is made up
of 17 Republicans and 13 Democrats. He also noted that the Speaker of the House, J.D. Mesnard,
is running for the Senate which will leave the Speaker seat vacant and will be made up by either
Rusty Bowers from LD 25 or Darin Mitchell from LD 13. In the Senate, it will be either Karen
Fann or J.D. Mesnard to take the place of President.
Mr. Ponder informed the Executive Committee of the League’s special projects. Firstly, digital
goods was a big issue last session and when we ran our numbers, the loss was calculated around
$160 million to the state, cities/towns and Prop 301 monies. Mr. Ponder explained to the board
that the major issue with this bill was data centers. There are only a handful of cities that have
data centers but they were a driving factor in our inability to negotiate with those who were
pushing for the digital goods legislation. The League contracted with Rounds Consulting Group,
to identify the economic impact of data centers. We do expect digital goods to continue to be an
issue in the 2019 Legislative Session and wish to use this analysis moving forward. Mr. Ponder
informed the board that the League has contracted with two tax specialists who will assist in
updating the Model City Tax codes for all of the non-self-collecting cities and towns. Lastly, Mr.
Ponder told the board that the League will be contracting with HighGround, LLC for the 2019
Legislative Session to assist with new and social media in an effort to better communicate with
the legislature and local communities. Most importantly, Mr. Ponder wishes to reintroduce the
League to the Legislature for the 2019 session.
3. DISCUSSION OF WAYFAIR DECISION AND NEXT STEPS IN DIGITAL GOODS
LEGISLATION

President Tibshraeny asked Executive Director Ken Strobeck to explain the issue.
Mr. Strobeck explained that since the U.S. Supreme Court decision in the Wayfair case had
changed the nexus for online sales from a physical presence to an economic standard. League
staff has had a lot of questions in regard to how to implement this at the state level especially in
light of the digital goods bills we saw last session. League Tax Policy Analyst Lee Grafstrom has
been working with Deputy Director Tom Belshe to work with the Department of Revenue to find
a path forward. Mr. Strobeck invites Mr. Grafstrom and Mr. Belshe to report on this issue.
Mr. Grafstrom informed the Executive Committee that the South Dakota vs. Wayfair decision
said that physical presence is no longer the standard. The standard now falls back to the same
standard that we use for income tax which is, do you have a substantial nexus with the state. This
standard focuses on is the seller creating and maintaining a market in exchange for services from
the state, such as does the seller take advantage of the state courts to form and enforce contracts.
The bottom line is that sellers no longer have to have a physical presence in the state to have
sales tax liability. This is a significant change. The Department of Revenue is taking a “wait and
see” approach as they expect legislation in the coming session. They are gathering information,
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mainly looking at what other state are doing so they will be ready to share it with legislators and
the JLBC, but they are not planning on issuing anything before the next session. South Dakota
had an economic presence rule in their statute, so when they won the case that law was effective
immediately. However, the South Dakota Department of Revenue released a statement saying
they would not be enforcing this law until October 1. Many other states have released similar
statements about requirements for remote sellers under the new standard, including some that
don’t have the bright line rules South Dakota has.
In the next legislative session we expect a bill establishing economic presence for remote sellers
with minimum thresholds similar to South Dakota’s standards of at least $100,000 in sales or 200
transactions in a calendar year. Another critical aspect is that this is almost certain to be
considered by some to be new revenue, so a bill will probably include offsetting tax cuts to avoid
a Prop 108 clause. Predicting how much revenue this will generate is going to be difficult but we
need to be skeptical of any revenue estimates that are very high. The top 100 online retailers are
responsible for at least 2/3 of all online sales with Amazon being the largest by far. Wayfair is
the only taxpayer in the top 20 that is not licensed and collecting tax already in the State of
Arizona. Out of the top 100, at least 83 are already licensed in Arizona and paying taxes. The top
three who were not paying were the defendants in the South Dakota case: Wayfair, Newegg and
Overstock.com, which rank about #17, 28 and 36 on the list of online retailers, respectively.
Amazon has been collecting taxes for several years, but only on sales it made directly. Many
thousands of smaller online retailers operate as 3rd party sellers through the Amazon platform
and up to now tax collection was mostly left up to those companies. However, on the Monday
after the Wayfair decision, Amazon informed their third party sellers they must become licensed
in all states as necessary to continue operating on the Amazon marketplace. This was reflected in
a sudden influx of new license applications received by the DOR. A lot of the potential revenue
you might think would be associated with this change is already being collected voluntarily, so
we shouldn’t expect a huge bump when the issue is resolved.
4. LEAGUE POSITION ON PROPOSITION 126, “THE PROTECT ARIZONA
TAXPAYERS ACT”
President Tibshraeny introduced Executive Director Ken Strobeck to discuss Proposition 126.
Mr. Strobeck informed the Executive Committee of Proposition 126 which will be on the ballot
for the upcoming election. The proposition would essentially shut off more than half of the
economy from ever being subject to tax, banning taxes on any service. Analysis has shown that
broad-based, low-rate tax policy is the best policy. Mr. Strobeck explained that this proposition
would make it impossible for cities and towns to tax services as it would be voter-protected and
in the constitution. The preamble language called out local leaders, specifically charter city
leaders, making the accusation that these leaders are greedy and are working to oppress the
public via taxation. Mr. Strobeck requested that the Executive Committee send out a press
release stating that the League is against this proposition.
After much discussion, it was suggested the draft resolution be amended to replace the third
paragraph with language from the sixth paragraph. The Executive Committee did not want to
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include language that appeared to be defensive but preferred to highlight what the committee
supports as good public policy in regard to taxes.
Mayor John Giles moved to approve the League Position on Proposition 126 as amended; Mayor
Georgia Lord seconded the motion and it carried unanimously.
5. LATEST SB 1487 CLAIMS AND UPDATE
President Tibshraeny introduced League General Counsel Christina Estes-Werther to report on
the developments regarding SB1487.
Ms. Estes-Werther reminded the Executive Committee that at the last meeting in May, there
were two pending 1487 complaints. One of the complaints was against the City of Tempe
regarding how they use GPLET on two different ordinances. In regard to the first ordinance
complaint against Tempe, the Attorney General found that the city does not violate and the
second ordinance complaint, the Attorney General found that the city may violate state law. The
AG ended up filing a special action with the Supreme Court; however they then decided to settle
with the City of Tempe. Part of that settlement agreement is that the city will not rely on that
ordinance in the future for GPLET purposes. This case has been resolved.
The second case pending was against the City of Sedona in regard to short-term rentals. Sedona
had a business license for short-term rentals and it was alleged that this license was violating
state law. The Attorney General’s analysis found that under the short-term rental statute, the city
was not violating state law, however; there was a close enough connection to the long-term rental
statutes that the AG found that the ordinance does violate state law. Sedona repealed the
ordinance so they would not lose their state shared revenue.
There was another 1487 complaint filed against the City of Sedona by Senator Burges on July
17. This complaint alleged that the City diverted a portion of their Bed Tax to the non-profit
Chamber and that it violated the Gift Clause. The report was due last week, but about a day
before the deadline, Sen. Burges wrote a letter to the Attorney General requesting the complaint
to be withdrawn and that the Attorney General investigate under a different statute. The new
investigation has to do with the illegal payment of public monies which was actually amended
this year to include several types of political subdivisions, including cities and towns. Ms. EstesWerther confirmed with the Attorney General’s office that they have closed the initial case and
will pursue the investigation under Title 35. This investigation will not have state shared revenue
at risk and is at the discretion of the office of the Attorney General.
6. REPORT FROM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
President Tibshraeny welcomed League Executive Director Ken Strobeck to present the League
Director’s Report.
Mr. Strobeck discussed the League’s interim activities including the increased use of social
media and updating tax codes. The social media initiative is an effort to better communicate with
local communities and groups for the legislative session. He also informed the Executive
Committee that the League has hired people to update all tax codes for self-collecting cities and
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towns to ensure they are all up to date for the next legislation session. It has been discussed that
the Arizona Tax Research Association may be interested in challenging the model city tax code
in the 2019 Legislative Session and the League wants to be sure all cities and towns are current
with their tax code.
Mr. Strobeck also informed the board that the League office building has a new lessee, Jim
Smalls with the Arizona Center for Investigative Reporting. Lastly, he points out summaries of
the three most recent Amicus briefs written by League General Counsel, Christina EstesWerther.

7. RESOLUTIONS OF APPRECIATION
President Jay Tibshraeny presented the Resolutions of Appreciation for service on the Executive
Committee for Mayor Linda Kavanagh, Councilmember Danny Valenzuela and Vice President
Mayor Mark Nexsen.
Mayor Bob Rivera moved to approve the resolutions; Mayor Nicholls seconded the motion and it
carried unanimously.
Mayor Linda Kavanagh said a few words of appreciation for the League and her time on the
Executive Committee. President Tibshraeny thanks Mayor Nexsen for being Vice President
through his presidency on the Executive Committee.
Seeing no further business, President Tibshraeny adjourned the meeting at 12:46 p.m.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 2, 2018

Agenda Item #2

Legislative Policy Overview and Update

Summary:

The First Regular Session of the Fifty-Fourth Arizona Legislature will
convene January 7, 2019. League staff has been working on several
interim legislative projects and will provide an update to the Executive
Committee on these and other topics:
Legislator Summit at the League
Projected legislative membership, leadership
Possible SB 1487 revisions
Food Truck model ordinance
Implementation of Wayfair decision; digital goods
o IGA with DOR
Municipal Policy Statement; League Resolutions
Other legislative proposals

Responsible Person:

Ken Strobeck & League Legislative Staff

Attachments:

PowerPoint for Legislative Summit
Overview of Food Truck model ordinance
Bullet points on Wayfair decision; digital goods
Draft Municipal Policy Statement

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA

CITIES AND TOWNS
2018
LEGISLATIVE CANDIDATE SYMPOSIUM

Origin and History
A voluntary, nonpartisan, nonprofit association
originally comprised of the 32 incorporated
cities and towns in the state
Originally formed under the name
Arizona Municipal League in 1937

Created to preserve local decision-making
over local matters
Founded on principles of home rule and local
determination
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The League Today
Effective voice for the interest of all 91
incorporated municipalities
Works with Legislature, Governor and state
agencies to assure AZ cities and towns always
have a seat at the table when important issues
are discussed
Provides consistently valuable programs and
services that benefit all cities, both large and
small

Mission Statement
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns exists
to provide vital services and tools to all its
members, focusing principally on representing
the interests of cities and towns before the
Legislature, and secondarily on providing
technical and legal assistance, coordinating
shared services, and producing high quality
conferences and educational events.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Treasurer
Doug Nicholls
Mayor, Yuma

Vice President
Cathy Carlat
Mayor, Peoria

President
Christian Price
Mayor, Maricopa

25-memberExecutiveCommitteeprovidestheLeaguewithdirection
andguidanceonissuesof GovernanceandPolicy

Mayor, Bullhead City

Jay Tibshraeny
Mayor, Chandler

Doug Von Gausig
Mayor, Clarkdale

Lana Mook
Mayor, El Mirage

Coral Evans
Mayor, Flagstaff

Jenn Daniels
Mayor, Gilbert

Jerry Weiers
Mayor, Glendale

Georgia Lord
Mayor, Goodyear

Tom Schoaf
Mayor, Litchfield Park

Ed Honea
Mayor, Marana

Satish Hiremath
Mayor, Oro Valley

TheldaWilliams
Mayor, Phoenix

Gail Barney
Mayor, Queen Creek

Jim Lane
Mayor, Scottsdale

Doug Seymore
Mayor, Show Low

Rick Mueller
Mayor, Sierra Vista

Sharon Wolcott
Mayor, Surprise

Mark Mitchell
Mayor, Tempe

Bob Rivera
Mayor, Thatcher

Anna Tovar
Mayor, Tolleson

Tom Brady

John Giles
Mayor, Mesa

Johnathan Rothschild

Mayor, Tucson

LEAGUE STAFF
Ken Strobeck
Executive Director

Tom Belshe
Deputy Director

Matt Lore

Communication and
Education Director

Nick Ponder
Legislative Director

Lee Graftrom

Christina EstesWerther
General Counsel

Sandy Morari
Office Manager

Tax Policy Analyst

Christine SmithHumphrey

Emily Webb
Member Services
Assistant

Administrative Assistant

Nicole Gonzales

Jonathan Howard

TomSavage

Alex Vidal

Administrative Assistant

Graphic Designer &
Web Technician

Legislative Associate

Legislative Associate

Samantha Wormer
Communication and
Education Associate
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• 14-member staff includes Executive Director, Deputy
Director, Legislative, Member Services and
Communication & Education departments
• Funded primarily by member dues (approximately 65%),
as well as by fees for other services and programs
• Dues schedule:
• $4,160 base plus a variable per capita amount ranging
between $0.49 and $0.52

79%
>90%

of Arizonans live in one of
the state’s 91 incorporated
cities and towns

of the state’s business activity
takes place in a city or town
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20

of Arizona’s cities and towns
were incorporated prior to
statehood

37

cities and towns in Arizona have
no property tax

19

of Arizona’s 91 cities and towns are
charter cities; Tombstone’s Territorial
Charter was adopted in 1881

10

Arizona ranking for percentage
of resident living in urban areas

#

The primary function of the
League is to represent the
interests of cities and towns
before the State Legislature and
the Executive Branch
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CORE PRINCIPLES:
Preserve Local Decision Making

Protect Shared Revenue

What is this?

A METHAPHOR
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What is this?

ULURU

(aka a monolith)

CORE PRINCIPLES:
Preserve Local Decision Making
• People tend to choose where
they live based on several
factors
• Jobs/Education
• Climate
• Environment
• Like-minded culture (politics)

Government Closest
to the People…
~GOVERNS BEST~
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2%

CORE PRINCIPLES:

9% 7%

Protect Shared Revenue
• State shared revenue makes up
nearly 40% of city/town budgets
• Vital to providing adequate public
safety needs

39%

Local Sales & Franchise Taxes
State Shared Revenue
Licenses, Permits, User Fees & Grants

• Provide Factual Data on Impact
of Legislative Proposals
• Weekly Legislative Bulletin
• Weekly conference call to
update members
• Testimony in Committee
• One-on-One Meetings with
Legislators
• Special Calls for Action

43%

Local Property Taxes
Fines & Forfeitures

• Legislative Days
• New Bill/New Law Summaries
• Lawsuits when necessary
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•
•
•
•
•
•

Information and Inquiry Service
Legal Services and Opinions
Model Ordinances and Codes
Incorporation Presentations
Model City Tax Code
Pooled/Endorsed Services
• AMRRP, US Communities,
American Legal

• Affiliate Groups
•
•
•
•

Arizona City/County Management
Association (ACMA)
Gov’t Finance Officers Association
of Arizona (GFOAz)
Arizona Municipal Clerks’
Association (AMCA)
Arizona City Attorneys
Association (ACAA)

League Publications
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Municipal Policy Statement
What Every Newly Elected Official
Needs to Know
You as a Public Official
Municipal Budget & Finance Manual
Municipal Election Manual
Municipal Incorporation in Arizona
Guide to Preparing and Adopting Local
Laws/ Municipal Publication
Requirements

•
•
•
•
•

Exploring Charter Government for
Your City
Charter Government Provisions in
Arizona
A Guide for Annexation
Anatomy of a Council-Meeting
Council-Manager Form of
Government in AZ
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Local Government Directory
•
•
•
•

Published for more than 50 years
One-stop shop for city and town,
county and state contacts
Available online with frequent
updates
Search for municipal contacts,
products and services through
keywords, location or contact

•

Hard copy published once per
year in January

Web site: www.azleague.org
• Content rich and offers latest information
for cities and towns
E-Newsletter “Connection”
• Monthly League newsletter covering
municipal news
Arizona City & Town
• Bi-annual magazine
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Annual Conference
•
•
•

Largest gathering of local elected &
appointed municipal officials in the state
Most important municipal event of the year
Premier education and networking
opportunity for local officials, businesses
and state officials

Professional Training Classes
• Classes and training on a wide
variety of topics, including:
• Planning and Zoning
Basics
• Parliamentary Procedures
• Public Records/Open
Meetings
• Ethics for City Officials

•
•
•

Impact Fees
Newly Elected Officials
Training
Grant Writing
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• We represent the same constituents and believe
our city councils are “partners in government with
state elected officials
• League needs to be seen as an honest broker of
information providing reliable data, not legislating by
anecdote
• Liaise with Governor’s Office and other state
agencies representing city/town interests

What Keeps Cities Strong?
•
•
•
•

Protection of local and state shared revenues
Government closest to the people governs best
Avoid “one size fits all” mandates
Recognize our mutual mission:
To protect the security of the people of Arizona and
make the state a great place to live and work.
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Resolutions
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Economic Presence
Border Crossing Card Extension
Impact Fees
City/Town Campaign Transfer
Pensions
9-1-1 Funding
Short Term Rental Regulation

•
•
•
•

State Workforce Housing Tax
Credit
Statewide Non-discrimination
policy (gender identity & sexual
orientation)
Airports near charter schools
State Liquor Board
Representation

Other Challenges
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Digital Goods
Home Based Businesses
Cable Licensing
Food Truck Regulations
SB1487 (2016) Fix
Construction Sales Tax
Etc.

Government Closest
to the People…
~GOVERNS BEST~
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@AZCities
www.facebook.com/AZCitiesWork/
www.azleague.org
1820 W. Washington Street
Phoenix, AZ 85007
602.258.5786
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October 17, 2018

TO:

Ken Strobeck, Executive Director

FROM:

Tom Savage, Legislative Associate

CC:

Christina Werther, General Counsel

SUBJECT:

FOOD TRUCK MODEL ORDINANCE

HB2371 established a statewide food and health safety licensing standards for mobile food vending
operations, intended specifically for food trucks. Of particular interest to cities and towns are the
provisions seeking to standardize the regulation of food trucks operations, including provisions related to
use of public parking spaces, required fire and safety inspections, operations on private property and
required spacing distances from existing bricks-and-mortar restaurants, among others. The sponsor of this
legislation, Representative Kevin Payne (R-Peoria), asserted the necessity for uniformity across the state
due to the recent growth and popularity of the industry and operations that extend beyond jurisdictional
boundaries of many communities, where there has been inconsistent enforcement of local codes and
ordinances.
At the request of the sponsor and many of our member cities and towns, the League convened a small
group of attorneys to draft a model ordinance to comply with the legislation and provide for consistent
regulation in our cities and towns. The League also included feedback from the National Food Truck
Association and met with local food truck vendors on October 10, 2018 to discuss the draft ordinance.
The final draft should be ready by the end of October for distribution to our members.
While this is intended to be a model ordinance, it does not mean every city or town will adopt this exact
same format. This draft is intended for communities that do not have an existing ordinance in this area or
would like to regulate mobile food vending separate from other types of mobile businesses. Other cities
will most likely blend the provisions of this draft into their existing ordinance. However, the League
highly encourages every city and town to adopt the provisions in section X-X-6 of the draft – the vendors
expressed these provisions are the most important to their industry to have standardized and adopting
these will most likely avoid further state regulation and preemption in this area.
Below are some highlights of the model ordinance draft:
Licensing and Permitting
The ordinance provides a few different options to choose from depending on how the city or town
currently permits or licenses mobile food vending. Included in the draft is an option of no permit or
license for communities that will rely on the state/county licensing process.

Parking
The ordinance will exclude parking in city-owned lots unless a vendor has permission from the city or
town. Vendors are limited to use one space on a city-owned lot and must request permission to use more
parking spaces.
Time limits on use of legal parking spaces (city-owned lots and in the right-of-way) is limited to no more
than 6 hours in a 24-hour period unless other restrictions apply. Vendors are prohibited from establishing
an exclusive right to park at a particular street location.
Parking on private property will require proof of permission from the property owner and there is an
option included to establish a 96-hour time limit with exceptions.
Operational Requirements
This section is where the vendors would like to see uniformity among cities and towns and it details
requirements for fire inspections, utility hookups, site management, trash removal, noise, and parking and
location restrictions, etc.
Special events
The working group of attorneys is looking at restricting food vending activity within a certain distance of
a special event to prevent vendors from circumventing event requirements and draw customers away from
those that have met the event requirements (sign separate agreements with the city/town, increase
insurance, etc.). The vendors also support including this provision in the ordinance as they have seen
unintended consequences associated with the legislation, however, we need to make sure this restrictions
fits with the new state law.
Fingerprinting and Background Checks
The vendors were concerned about fingerprinting requirements being expanded beyond the cities that
currently require this. Their preference is that cities no longer have this requirement but will agree to it
being limited to only the owners and controlling persons of the operation rather than everyone that is
working on the truck. Their concern is the expense and the time it takes for all employees on the food
truck to go through the process when ultimately it is the owner or controlling person that will be held
responsible and have their license revoked if an issue arises. The League encourages the cities with
fingerprinting requirements to consider the provisions included in sections X-X-5 and X-X-6(E) that
require the vendor to designate a responsible person that has been background checked and fingerprinted,
and must be on site during operation. This may alleviate some of the concerns of the vendors and prevent
future attempts to preempt cities from having these requirements.
Fees
Fees were a topic of discussion with the vendors last week. We informed them the League takes no
position on setting of fee amounts as it is best determined by the city/town and based on the cost of doing
business. The amounts are left blank as to give the adopting city or town the opportunity to reference their
existing fees schedule.
The vendors, however, expressed concerns with a few cities regarding the fees that are being charged for
licenses/permits, some as high as a few hundred dollars for each location they want to conduct business.
This may be an opportunity for cities and towns to review their existing fees for this activity to see if it is
still commensurate with the resources needed to process and issue the licenses and permits or if the costs
have been reduced.

The Wayfair Decision and TPT in Arizona
•

South Dakota v Wayfair – Elimination of the old physical presence requirement makes
most remote sellers subject to TPT, dependent on state issued minimum activity limits

•

Before South Dakota v Wayfair:
 IL v National Bellas Hess (1967) Established the “physical presence” standard for sales
tax nexus – a standard only applied to sales tax (all other taxes follow the Complete Auto
Transit “substantial nexus” standard established by the Court in 1977.
 Quill v ND (1992) Reaffirmed the physical presence requirement within a state for the
state to impose its sales (TPT) tax; “physical presence” included stores, warehouses,
inventory, visiting salesmen, delivery by your own truck, agents, etc.

•

South Dakota v Wayfair
 SD legislature passed an “economic presence” law for sellers without physical presence
 Based on a minimum of $100,000 in sales, or 200 total transactions in a calendar year

•

SCOTUS ruled the Physical Presence standard of Quill was “unsound and incorrect”
 Quill was fully overturned – The Quill decision no longer exists a legal precedent

•

The Court stated that Commerce Clause issues should be based on the test in Complete
Auto Transit v Brady, the same standard used for other state taxes
 Substantial nexus – connection between a state and a potential taxpayer must be clear
enough to impose a tax (seller is creating and maintaining a market within the state)
 Nondiscrimination – tax structure cannot favor intrastate sellers over interstate sellers
 Fair apportionment – taxation in each state is imposed only on in-state activity
 Fair relationship to services provided by the state – seller must enjoy services such as
police/fire protection and access to the courts to enforce contracts while in the state

•

ADOR is gathering information on other state treatments, laws, effective dates, etc.
 TPT Nexus is NOT in statute – it’s in a DOR guideline based entirely on the Quill decision
 No enforcement activity is currently being taken; the DOR has indicated they are waiting
for anticipated legislative action in January
 Action could come sooner with direction from the Governor’s office to the DOR to revise
its Nexus Guideline in conformity with the Wayfair decision

•

Many states have already announced the application of the Complete Auto standard
 More than 25 states, including many that are not members of the “Streamlined Sales
Tax Project”, have announced prospective enforcement beginning Oct. 1, Jan. 1, etc.
 SSTP membership is NOT required. SSTP was an effort to receive Congressional approval
through simplification to circumvent the Quill decision and tax remote sellers. None of
the larger states are members or likely to become members.

•

Beware the “windfall” myth:
 The largest retailers are already paying the tax! Amazon, Walmart, Target, Best Buy, etc.
 83 of the top 100 are licensed; the League is investigating the status of the top 1,000
remote sellers, representing more than 95% of all online sales

2019 DRAFT Municipal Policy Statement
Overview
Cities and towns in Arizona are home to nearly 80% of the state’s residents and more
than 90% of the state’s business activity. They are the level of government closest to the
people, most accessible to them and most responsive to their needs. They provide the
vast majority of first-responder—police and fire—services and are national leaders in
business development, government efficiency and quality-of-life amenities. Arizona’s
cities and towns are an essential part of the continuum of government in our state.
Core Principles
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns is guided by two core principles:
1) Preserve local decision-making; and
2) Protect shared revenues
Legislative Priorities
The League supports legislation respecting the role of municipal government and its
core principles and opposes measures that undermine them. The following policy
priorities were developed with input from our members and will ensure that cities and
towns can maintain the high-quality municipal government services that businesses and
citizens rely on.
Efficient and Fiscally Responsible Government
Cities and towns work to meet citizens’ expectations that their local government
provides streamlined business processes and the best customer service at the
lowest possible expense. Revenue streams, including shared revenues, must be
protected and remain sustainable to support efficient delivery of services to our
citizens. These concepts contribute to the effort of achieving this objective:
• Explore potential modifications to the impact fee statutes to ensure new
development pays for the associated demand of new and expanded
infrastructure
• Seek a remedy to the inequitable treatment for tax collection on retail sales by
remote sellers
• Explore policies that permit current Public Safety Personnel Retirement
System members to voluntarily convert to a defined contribution plan,
providing increased flexibility to members and cost savings to the plan
• Support the creation of a housing tax credit to increase affordable housing
and reduce the costs of and demand on public services as a result of a lack of
housing
• Permit the use of unspent monies from legacy volunteer fire department profit
sharing plans to reduce unfunded liabilities in the PSPRS

Tourism and Economic Development
Tourism is a major sector of our state’s economy and that of many cities and
towns. Our state’s climate and natural resources attract tourists from all over the
world, representing a multi-billion dollar industry that generates tax revenues and
creates jobs. Cities and towns support policies that enhance tourism and the ease
of travel into our state.
• Support federal efforts that increase international tourism into Arizona.
Safe Communities and Sustainable Neighborhoods
The protection of citizens, communities and neighborhoods is a core function of
local government. It is essential for cities and towns to have the tools necessary to
address nuisances without a one-size-fits-all state-level policy that intervenes in
citizens’ quiet enjoyment of their neighborhoods. It is equally important to ensure
vital public safety and emergency services are accessible and able to respond
quickly to residents’ needs.
• Allow for local regulation of short-term home rentals to protect the residential
character of neighborhoods
• Support the appointment of a local government representative on the State
Liquor Board to ensure a local perspective on Board decisions
• Support legislation that balances the safety of children in school buildings
near airports with the preservation of airports’ long-term viability and
economic benefits
• Examine and explore resources to adequately fund the statewide 9-1-1
system
• Support a non-discrimination policy that includes gender identity
and sexual orientation
Local Elections
Cities and towns support policies that allow leaders with municipal government
experience to seamlessly transition to higher office.
• Seek equity in state law for city and town elected officials to transfer
campaign funds to a legislative or statewide office

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 2, 2018

Agenda Item #3

Legal Update

Summary:

Cities and towns in Arizona are being sued over a variety of issues and
the League has been asked to support our members with various amicus
briefs. The League General Counsel will update the Executive
Committee on the latest cases.
As of this writing, there have been no new claims filed under SB 1487.
This agenda item also includes an update on national legal issues that
may impact Arizona including possible litigation over new federal
Telecommunications legislation.

Responsible Person:

Christina Estes-Werther, General Counsel

Attachments:

Summary of amicus requests

Note: If necessary to discuss legal strategy with our attorney, the Executive Committee may
choose to convene in Executive Session.

Executive Committee Update: 2018 League Amicus Briefs
McDonald/Ryan v. Napier: This appeal was in response to the Division Two opinion that allowed the
plaintiff to disguise a battery claim as a negligence claim resulting in the loss of a justification defense by
the police. In this case, an officer released a K-9 on a suspect and the suspect/plaintiff alleged the
officer’s decision to use force (before actually using force) was negligent. The trial court agreed with
plaintiffs that the use-of-force justification statutes do not apply to negligence claims, circumventing our
immunity statutes. On August 23, 2018, the Arizona Supreme Court found that the trial court and court
of appeals erred by deciding that the officer could be liable in negligence for the officer’s intentional
release of the dog to bite and hold the suspect. The only claim supported by the facts is an intentional
battery, which the plaintiff deliberately neither pled nor tried to the jury. The Court reversed the trial
court’s judgment and remanded for entry of judgment in favor of the officer. The League amicus brief
written by Nick Acedo included AZ Association of Chiefs of Police, AMRRP, and all the county sheriffs.
Lake Pleasant 5000 - Circle City Water Company and the City of Surprise: The City of Surprise sought to
acquire Circle City Water via friendly condemnation; however, Lake Pleasant 5000 LLC (developer) filed
an action at the Corporation Commission to halt the condemnation because it claims it has rights to the
water allocation. The Commission assumed jurisdiction and required Circle City Water to file an
application with the Commission regarding the proposed sale. Meanwhile, voters approved the City’s
acquisition on May 15, 2018. The City argued that the Commission has no jurisdiction in this matter
because 1) the courts have proper jurisdiction in a condemnation action; and 2) the developer’s claims
regarding a potential breach of contract must also be addressed by the courts. Further, the City is
concerned that the Commission’s actions are establishing a dangerous precedent that future city
condemnations involving utilities will require the Commission’s permission. The League amicus brief
was filed in June. Oral argument was on October 4, 2018 and a decision is pending from the Arizona
Supreme Court.
Schires et al. v. Carlat et al.: The City of Peoria was sued by the Goldwater Institute who alleged that the
City’s economic development agreements with a university and commercial developer violated the gift
clause in the Arizona Constitution. The court granted the City’s motion for summary judgment and
Goldwater appealed. The League’s amicus will discuss the impact on other municipal economic
development projects if Goldwater prevails in its legal theories and argue against Goldwater’s narrow
interpretation of the gift clause test, which would make it difficult for municipalities to engage in future
agreements. The opening brief was filed on September 4, 2018 and Peoria will respond in midNovember. The League amicus brief will be filed in late December.
Humphrey v. State of Arizona: This case arises out of a fatal motor vehicle crash that occurred on a state
highway on May 14, 2008. The surviving family members sued the State of Arizona, alleging negligence
for its failure to install a median barrier at the stretch of roadway where the crash occurred. There are
two primary issues in this case that all affect all government entities. First, the court allowed the
plaintiffs to file the complaint despite missing the deadlines for the notice of claim and statute of
limitations, creating a new standard that a claim doesn’t accrue until all the evidence is collected, rather
than when the damaged party realizes he or she has been damaged. Second, the court erred when it
denied immunity to the State and held that the State’s decision not to install a median barrier was not
an affirmative decision and therefore not protected under absolute immunity pursuant to A.R.S. § 12820.01(A)(2). If this decision is affirmed, it will negatively impact municipalities’ ability to defend
themselves in lawsuits. The appeal was delayed for over a year due to transcription errors, but the
opening brief was recently filed. The League amicus will also represent all 15 counties, AMRRP, and the
School Risk Retention Trust and is due in late December.
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Agenda Item #4

Recap of 2018 Annual Conference

Summary:

Staff will give an overview of the 2018 Annual Conference Survey and
Financial Report from the August Conference in Phoenix.

Responsible Person:

Matt Lore, Communication & Education Director

Attachments:

Attendance / Financial Report
Conference survey results

2018 LEAGUE ANNUAL CONFERENCE
ATTENDANCE REPORT
Date:

August 21-24, 2018

Location:

The Phoenician Resort
Phoenix, Arizona

1,332 persons attended the conference. 82 of the 91 cities and towns (90%) were
representated at the event. The following is a summary of those who attended.

Position
Mayors
Vice Mayors
Councilmembers
Manager/Assistant Manager
Clerk/Deputy Clerk
Attorney/Assistant Attorney
Intergov
Other City/Town
Spouse (Includes " 57 Badge Only"; 13 Comps)
Life Member
COG Director
State Department
State Representatives
State Senators
Speakers
Sponsors
Other
Youth
TOTAL

Total
Registrants
74
44
256
79
15
20
22
155
128
5
7
38
24
13
36
194
15
207
1,332

2018 Annual Conference - The Phoenician Resort, Phoenix
I N C O M E
SPONSORS
Arizona Pipe Trades UA Local 469
Arizona Public Service
Arizona State University
Cigna
ITC Holdings
SOLON
University of Arizona
American Legal Publishing
AMRRP
BMO Harris Bank
H-PACT
National League of Cities Service Line Warranty Program
U.S. Communities
Kairos Health Arizona, Inc.
Kasdan LippSmith Weber Turner, LLP
The Nature Conservancy in Arizona
Republic Services
Schneider Electric
STIFEL
Swire Coca-Cola, USA
Union Pacific Railroad
Waste Management
Waymo
Brown & Associates
CenturyLink
Gammage & Burnham
Highground, Inc
LIUNA/LECET Southwest
UnitedHeathcare
Verizon
Agenda Discovery, LLC
American Airlines
Arizona Medical Response
Arizona Office of Tourism
AT&T
Banner / Aetna
BNSF Railway
Central Arizona Project
Comcast
Commvault
Cox Business
EPCOR
Gust Rosenfeld, P.L.C.
Kutak Rock LLP
Midstate Energy, LLC
Midwestern University
Molera Alvarez l A Government & Public Affairs Firm
ONE Community
RBC Capital Markets
Security Industry Alarm Coalition (SIAC)
Siemens Building Technologies
Southwest Gas Corporation
SRP
T-Mobile USA
Tucson Electric Power / UniSource Energy Services
Wendel Energy Services

Level
Platinum
Platinum
Platinum
Platinum
Platinum
Platinum
Platinum
Endorsed
Endorsed
Endorsed
Endorsed
Endorsed
Endorsed
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Gold
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Bronze (Endorsed)
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze
Bronze

Contribution
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000
$10,000

$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$8,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$5,000
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500
$2,500

Additional

Totals

$2,000

$72,000.00

$80,000.00
$800

$35,800.00

$800

$800

$800
$800

Total Sponsors

$65,700.00
$253,500.00

Registrations
Member (Early) [Includes 17 No-Shows]
Non-Member (Early) [includes 7 No-Shows]
Member [Includes 2 No-Shows]
Non-Member [includes 8 No-Show]
Member Cancellations [Non-Refundable]
Member Cancellation Fees
Sponsor (NBO)
Miscellaneous (Single Day)
Miscellaneous (NBO)
Miscellaneous (NBO; Awards Lunch; Dinner)
Spouse (Full Program Registration Incl. 1 No Show & 13 Comps )
Spouse (Name Badge Only)
Additional General Lunch Tickets Purchased
Additional Tour Tickets Purchased
Additional Dinner Tickets Purchased
Golf (paid only)
Spouse Cancellations [Non-Refundable]
Showcase Booths [includes 21 Cities with extra booths]
Showcase Booths [with electricity]
Showcase Booth [add extra table]
Pre-Conference Workshop - Opportunities Abound
Youth Program

549
51
26
36
5
26
40
6
14
11
71
57
17
8
19
38
2
69
25
22
53
204

Fee
$295
$350
$315
$400
$295
$25
$25
$175
$25
$145
$150
$25
$45
$45
$75
$105
$150
$200
$70
$25
$40
$65

Total
$161,955
$17,850
$8,190
$14,400
$1,475
$650
$1,000
$1,050
$350
$1,595
$10,650
$1,425
$765
$360
$1,425
$3,990
$300
$13,800
$1,750
$550
$2,120
$13,260
Total Registrations

$258,910.00

TOTAL REVENUE

$512,410.00

EXPENDITURES
BANQUET / HOTEL CHARGES
The Phoenician Resort
Deposits
$30,000.00
Rooms
$18,849.13
Rooms Discount
-$5,106.17
Food & Beverage (less $6900 golf)
$220,291.74
AV
$42,756.26
Miscellaneous charges
$217.64
Reimbursement (MAG Ari-Son breakfast & lunch on Tuesday)
Reimbursement (HPACT reception)
GOLF
Golf & Food (deal with Phoenician - $100 inclusive to include golf, breakfast, lunch)
69 @ $100
Golf bags
90 @ .52
Amazon gift cards (prizes - $50 for 1st place foursome; $25 for 2nd place foursome; 3 individual $25 prizes)
SHOWCASE & SPONSOR BOOTHS
CSI, etc. (72 booths)
CSI, etc. (Sponsor booths)
TRANSPORTATION
U-Haul 15' (Office to Phoenician)
Fuel charges
Staff mileage reimbursements
SPEAKER FEES/EXPENSES, ENTERTAINMENT
Bruce Vincent (Wednesday opening session)
Matt Lehrman (Friday closing session)
Lisa Soronen, SLLC
Amazon gift cards - thank you to speakers
47 @ $25
Groove Merchants (Wednesday dinner entertainment)
Ferrari LLC (HPACT reception band - to be reimbursed)
AWARDS
Award Mart - Service Award, Legislator plaques
Marco (wood frames) - Legis Friend Award (41); 12-year Service Award (14)
55 @ $16.60
MTM Recognition - 8 year Service Award covers (45)
45 @ $10.68
Fusion Frames - Sponsor Awards (Platinum, Gold & Endorsed - 23)
23 @ $22.53
Certificate Folders - Sponsor Awards (Silver & Bronze - 26)
26 @ $8.62
PRINTING / Banners, Posters, Brochures, Flyers, etc.
Gordon Graphics (program - 900)

$277,008.60
-$7,279.68
-$11,475.87

$258,253.05

$6,900.00
$46.80
$350.00

$7,296.80

$5,485.00
$1,040.00

$6,525.00

$116.55
$34.22
$0.00

$150.77

$6,000.00
$1,500.00
$417.67
$1,175.00
$3,500.00
$1,500.00

$14,092.67

$2,602.98
$913.00
$480.60
$518.19
$224.12

$4,738.89

$1,537.27

Marco (900 printed canvas bags)
Black copy charges
Color copy charges
Postage (shipping 8 yr service award certificates)
Postage (shipping service award plaques)
Postage (shipping silver and bronze awards certificates)
Postage (sponsor letters)
Marco (ribbons)
Marco (black wallet badge holders)
Marco (clear plastic badge holders)
CSI, etc. (banners)
SPOUSE PROGRAM
MIM Museum
VIA Adventures (bus)
YOUTH PROGRAM
Marco (black wallet badge holders)
Marco (ribbons)
Candy for prizes
MISCELLANEOUS
Expo Plu$/CCI Program (conference insurance)
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Regular Registration
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Single Day Registration
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Golf
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Tours
Cvent registration fees (2.00 per registrant/per event) - Showcase
Planning Committee Meeting (no meeting in 2018)
Mobile App (Attendify)
Miscellaneous - staff meals (Doughbird)
Aaron Hoskins Photography
Miscellaneous tips & supplies (poster paper, boxes, envelopes, etc.)
Surprise 1st Young Women's Group donation for stuffing canvas bags

$4,656.00
$71.04
$774.30
$186.20
$51.00
$219.45
$22.54
$130.50
$1,096.70
$44.80
$5,500.00

$14,289.80

35 @ $20
$550 + $50 tip

$700.00
$600.00

$1,300.00

207 @ $1.10
522 @ .25

$227.70
$130.50
$34.42

$392.62

$1,440.16
$2,330.00
$6.00
$134.00
$122.00
$98.00
N/A
$999.00
$138.92
$1,638.00
$422.43
$1,000.00

$8,328.51

TOTAL EXPENSES
Excess Revenue Over Expenditures

$315,368.11
$197,041.89

1,176 @ .04
7,743 @ .10
28 @ $6.65
6 @ $8.50
33 @ $6.65
46 @ .49
522 @ .25
997 @ $1.10
128 @ .35

1165 @ $2.00
3 @ $2.00
67 @ $2.00
61 @ $2.00
49 @ $2.00

$1500 + tax

2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q1 Opening General Session
Answered: 97

Skipped: 2

50
40
30
20
10
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

Average

AVERAGE

0.00%
0

GOOD

1.16%
1

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

9.30%
8

Excellent

EXCELLENT

38.37%
33

TOTAL

51.16%
44

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

86

4.40

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

The professional logger who spoke was truly inspiring and amazing. That by its self was worth the
the entire trip.

9/6/2018 7:43 PM

2

The speaker was one of the best public speakers I have heard in years.

9/6/2018 12:01 PM

3

To crowded not enough seating in the room. If the tables were removed there would have been
room for a lot more chairs.

9/3/2018 10:40 PM

4

enjoyed guest speaker

8/30/2018 5:58 PM

5

enjoyed the guest speaker

8/30/2018 5:55 PM

6

Great key note speaker

8/30/2018 4:42 PM

7

Clarence Anthony was a great addition

8/29/2018 10:47 AM

8

Liked the message and the way it was delivered

8/28/2018 6:18 PM

9

Bruce Vincent was outstanding.

8/28/2018 4:24 PM

10

Great speaker!

8/28/2018 4:13 PM

11

Very interesting speaker

8/28/2018 3:41 PM

12

The speaker was engaging and spoke about what was important to rural communities.

8/28/2018 3:00 PM

13

Best speaker ever

8/28/2018 2:50 PM

14

Timely relevant speaker

8/28/2018 2:44 PM

15

Great speaker

8/28/2018 2:32 PM

16

Great speaker

8/28/2018 2:20 PM

17

Enjoyed the key note speaker

8/28/2018 2:13 PM

18

Great speaker

8/28/2018 2:10 PM

19

Did not atttend opening session

8/28/2018 2:10 PM

20

Excellent speaker!

8/28/2018 2:10 PM

1 / 39

2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q2 Maximizing Local Airports: The Economic Impact of Aviation to
Arizona's Communities
Answered: 84

Skipped: 15

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
15.00%
3

Average
GOOD
25.00%
5

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

30.00%
6

TOTAL

30.00%
6

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

20

3.75

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Too focused on the Phoenix airports and not much take away for small regional airports.

8/28/2018 6:18 PM

2

Very Benficial and Informative. Thought Ed Farren with Phoenix Deer Valley Airport did a great job
in covering the information.so thoroughly.

8/28/2018 2:18 PM
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q3 Opioid Crisis: How Cities and Towns Are Combating the Opioid
Problem in Their Communities
Answered: 86

Skipped: 13

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

5.00%
1

AVERAGE

Average
GOOD

15.00%
3

20.00%
4

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

40.00%
8

20.00%
4

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

20

3.55

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

No real answers to deal with the root cause. No plan how to deal with the illegal network and
manufacturing. Yes there is a problem, now what

9/3/2018 10:40 PM

2

Not much help for small towns

8/28/2018 3:15 PM

3

Not much help for small towns

8/28/2018 3:15 PM

4

Not enough info on creative solutions and too much info on data gathering.

8/28/2018 2:59 PM
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q4 Update From Our Endorsed Partners: Programs That Can Save Your
City or Town Money
Answered: 80

Skipped: 19

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
13.33%
2

Average
GOOD

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

53.33%
8

Excellent

EXCELLENT

20.00%
3

13.33%
2

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

15

3.33

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Interesting. Lets hear more about available grants, USDA funding, outsourcing, etc. Interesting,
could have had more info.

8/28/2018 2:32 PM

2

Picked up a couple of good tips in this session.

8/28/2018 2:21 PM
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q5 Branding and Marketing Our Local Communities: Creating a Sense of
Locality and Identity
Answered: 84

Skipped: 15

20
16
12
8
4
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

2.70%
1

AVERAGE
8.11%
3

Average
GOOD
29.73%
11

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

40.54%
15

18.92%
7

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

37

3.65

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Gave me many great ideas, always great information from Kimber

8/30/2018 12:11 PM

2

50% Excellent; 50% Good

8/29/2018 8:48 AM

3

First speaker was very difficult to hear even with microphone. Recommend room hosts check
levels to insure good sound.

8/28/2018 8:09 PM

4

Started slow but gained momentum

8/28/2018 2:44 PM

5

Would have liked a few more actual case statistics. But overall very good

8/28/2018 2:16 PM
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q6 Transportation Issues at the State and Local Level
Answered: 80

Skipped: 19

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
20.83%
5

Average
GOOD
33.33%
8

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

25.00%
6

20.83%
5

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

24

3.46

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

I thought it was going to be local transportation issues.

9/3/2018 3:45 PM

2

Anthony Bedell's portion was good but the remainder was too basic.

8/28/2018 4:13 PM

3

Seems like we're not learning anything new

8/28/2018 2:41 PM
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q7 Arizona's Public Universities: How Cities and Towns Can Leverage
Their Strategic Partnerships
Answered: 78

Skipped: 21

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
35.71%
5

Average
GOOD

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

28.57%
4

Excellent

EXCELLENT

28.57%
4

7.14%
1

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

14

3.07

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

This is not what I expected when I attended the class. I expected a more Town/Gown type
session. So I was disappointed in the sesssion. Hopefully all 3 universities could be involved.
Thanks

9/3/2018 7:00 AM

2

Needed a little more detail. Overview was good.

8/28/2018 2:16 PM
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q8 League 2018 Legislative Report and Look Ahead to 2019 Legislative
Session
Answered: 80

Skipped: 19

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
17.24%
5

Average
GOOD

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

20.69%
6

Excellent

EXCELLENT

27.59%
8

34.48%
10

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

29

3.79

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

It was nice to hear the predictions but not much looking ahead

9/3/2018 10:40 PM

2

Always love to have info on laws being put forth

8/28/2018 3:00 PM
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q9 Preparing for Census 2020: What Your City or Town Should Know
Answered: 77

Skipped: 22

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

AVERAGE

0.00%
0

31.25%
5

Average
GOOD
18.75%
3

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

25.00%
4

25.00%
4

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

16

3.44

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

confusing session

8/30/2018 12:11 PM

2

Provided me our county connection.

8/28/2018 4:24 PM

3

Too general, not well suited for those already prepared.

8/28/2018 2:59 PM

4

This was a great amount of information and it was great learning how other towns and citites have
begun the necessary work to collect the necessary data.

8/28/2018 2:10 PM
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q10 Top 10 Questions Attorneys Grapple With When Guiding Their
Councils
Answered: 79

Skipped: 20

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

4.00%
1

AVERAGE
8.00%
2

Average
GOOD
16.00%
4

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

36.00%
9

36.00%
9

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

25

3.92

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Interesting questions

8/28/2018 2:32 PM

2

Christina moderated the session skillfully.

8/28/2018 2:21 PM
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q11 Transitioning to a Digital Government
Answered: 82

Skipped: 17

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

4.76%
1

AVERAGE
4.76%
1

Average
GOOD
9.52%
2

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

Excellent

EXCELLENT

38.10%
8

42.86%
9

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

21

4.10

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Not what I expected. Thought it would be about going digital during Council and Commission
meetings.

8/29/2018 11:31 AM

2

Loved the Panel on this course. Mayor from Gilbert was full of info and spoke well. Dana their
digital person was amazing all the stuff that she has been doing for Gilbert is very impressive.

8/28/2018 3:00 PM

3

It seems there would be value in having sessions that go deeper

8/28/2018 2:41 PM
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Q12 A New Paradigm for Economic Development in the 21st Century
Answered: 79

Skipped: 20
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TOTAL
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19
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#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Great dialogue. Chris Camacho did an excellent job moderating and catering to the audience.

8/28/2018 5:22 PM
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Q13 Short-Term Rentals: Trends, Impacts and Opportunities
Answered: 77

Skipped: 22
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Lots of examples but little how to deal with issues. Short is subjective 3 days or 30 days. Same
type of issues, speaker was to narrow in scope

9/3/2018 10:57 PM

2

impressed with speaker, very knowledgeable about subject and AZ conditions, but didn't tell me
anyting new about issue

8/30/2018 5:59 PM

3

impressed with guest speaker but didn't tell me anything I didn't already know

8/30/2018 5:56 PM

4

A ton of solutions and good ideas presented. Good mix of background and forward thinking.

8/28/2018 3:01 PM

5

A lot of suggestions would violate AZ law. Good to have legislators in the session though.

8/28/2018 2:20 PM
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Q14 State Preemption, Local Autonomy and the Ghost of Judge Dillon:
What's a Local Government to Do?
Answered: 75

Skipped: 24
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.
There are no responses.
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Excellent

11.76%
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TOTAL
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17

3.29
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q15 Public Service Ethics and Open Government
Answered: 78

Skipped: 21
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Some real examples or real life scenarios...is this a conflict? Etc

8/28/2018 2:41 PM

2

Always need this refresher to remind me of possible traps we can accidentally fall into in public
service!

8/28/2018 2:23 PM

3

best of all sessions

8/28/2018 2:22 PM

4

Thought there would be some case studies and examples used. I get enough of open meeting
laws.

8/28/2018 2:14 PM
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Q16 Cities and Towns Open for Business: What Are the Most Important
Factors When Companies Decide to Locate in Your City or Town?
Answered: 76

Skipped: 23
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.
There are no responses.
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Excellent

40.00%
8
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DATE

2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q17 Building and Maintaining Effective Mayor, Council and Manager
Relationships
Answered: 80

Skipped: 19
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33
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Surprised that except mayors there were no council members speaking ; in rural /smaller towns
the relationships may be a bit different between CM and council and CM and mayor

9/5/2018 4:47 PM

2

It is always good to hear from other municipalties leaders.

8/28/2018 4:25 PM

3

Moderator and questions to panel effective .

8/28/2018 2:38 PM

4

This session was a very informative session on how things are down in other cities/towns.

8/28/2018 2:25 PM

5

Skillfully facilitated by Gayle Mabery.

8/28/2018 2:23 PM
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Q18 Reading the Tea Leaves: Pundits Discuss the Current Political
Climate, the Upcoming Election and Next Year's Legislative Session
Answered: 79

Skipped: 20
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

This session should be given more time... :)

8/31/2018 8:28 AM

2

change presider, he dominated the discussion

8/30/2018 5:59 PM

3

change moderator

8/30/2018 5:56 PM

4

I was expecting discussion based more on the pros and cons dependent on the election(s) and
items to be discussed at the next legislative session. It appeared to be more of personal opionions
of the candidates.

8/28/2018 3:26 PM

5

Entertaining and informative. Covered a great deal in a very short period of time.

8/28/2018 3:01 PM
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Q19 Local Issues Before the US Supreme Court
Answered: 75

Skipped: 24
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#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Not enough information about small towns. Nothing in the pipe line to help funding for small towns
and agg.

9/3/2018 10:57 PM

2

Congrats on getting Lisa to present. Her session was outstanding. Would love to hear from her
every year!

8/28/2018 2:41 PM
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Q20 Preparing the Workforce for the Future: Are we Ready?
Answered: 77

Skipped: 22
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.
There are no responses.
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Excellent

14.29%
1

TOTAL
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3.29
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2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q21 Arizona Association of Chiefs of Police Offers New Accreditation to
Arizona Police Departments
Answered: 73

Skipped: 26
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

At the same time as Congressmen McSally who was not provided with a large enough room. Bad
on someone!!!

8/28/2018 2:43 PM
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Q22 Trending TPT Issues – Digital Goods; The Wayfair Decision
Answered: 74

Skipped: 25
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Very knowledgeable presenters and presented a good discussion.

8/28/2018 6:20 PM

2

Speakers shouldn't expect everyone in audience knows their slang or has props memorized.

8/28/2018 2:43 PM

3

Please explain use tax

8/28/2018 2:41 PM
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Q23 Speed Networking Breakfast for Municipal Officials
Answered: 77

Skipped: 22
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Was this on Friday? For I see the question a little later in the survey.

9/3/2018 7:06 AM

2

Needed more participation. There should have been one general topic per table or something to
get it going.

8/29/2018 11:34 AM

3

Liked to had more time in discussions. Great networking session.

8/28/2018 6:22 PM

4

This has grown over the years from just a few folks to several, it's always fun!

8/28/2018 3:42 PM

5

Loved this

8/28/2018 2:45 PM

6

First time attending Speed Networking and I loved having the opportunity to speak with other
leaders from around Arizona.

8/28/2018 2:26 PM

23 / 39

2018 League Annual Conference Survey

Q24 Closing General Session: 10 Essential Skills for Public Engagement
Answered: 84

Skipped: 15
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS ON THE SESSION HERE.

DATE

1

Liked the interactive nature of the presentation.

9/5/2018 4:48 PM

2

This session should have been put on the agenda earlier - too many people don't stay for the final
session and it was very good.

8/31/2018 3:00 PM

3

This was a great session ,energetic speaker interacted with the group loved it

8/29/2018 9:39 AM

4

Novel way of presenting but offered some great perspectives.

8/28/2018 6:22 PM

5

Well done and interactive

8/28/2018 2:45 PM

6

Great information and public speaker.

8/28/2018 2:26 PM
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Q25 Education Pre-Conference Session: Arizona Education Progress
Meter and Statewide Attainment Goal
Answered: 78

Skipped: 21
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Excellent panel! Enjoyed the idea sharing and real examples.

8/28/2018 5:23 PM

2

This was all new to me

8/28/2018 2:46 PM
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Q26 Pre-Conference Session: Opportunities Abound: Strategies for
Dealing With Challenging Residents and Co-Workers
Answered: 78

Skipped: 21

10
8
6
4
2
0

(no label)

Poor
POOR
(no label)

0.00%
0

AVERAGE
25.00%
3

Average
GOOD

Good

Very Good

VERY GOOD

8.33%
1

16.67%
2

Excellent

EXCELLENT
50.00%
6

TOTAL

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

12

3.92

#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

This looked like a great class, but not for $40.00

9/2/2018 12:24 PM

2

Very basic training.

8/28/2018 2:46 PM
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Q27 Gubernatorial Candidate Forum
Answered: 84

Skipped: 15
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#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Glad to have this opportunity to see the candidates!!

9/5/2018 4:49 PM

2

If you don’t get the sitting Governor who is rerunning to attend it’s not very meaningful.

9/3/2018 7:06 AM

3

Too bad Gov. Ducey didn't attend, especially since he gave the keynote address approximately 30
minutes later.

9/2/2018 12:24 PM

4

Would have been better if Ducey had participated.

8/29/2018 8:50 AM

5

incomplete

8/28/2018 2:26 PM

6

Great introduction to our gubernatorial candidates.

8/28/2018 2:24 PM

7

The only thing I did not like was that the candidates exited immediately after their presentations.
Two things, they should have stayed through each candidates presentation, and they should have
remained for questions afterward

8/28/2018 2:19 PM
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Q28 Golf at Camelback Golf Club: Ambiente Course
Answered: 78

Skipped: 21
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Too many no shows!

8/28/2018 6:24 PM
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Q29 Spouse/Guest Tour: Musical Instrument Museum
Answered: 78
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Spouse attended for the second time and thoroughly enjoyed!!

9/5/2018 4:49 PM

2

She lived it! Thank you!

8/31/2018 8:29 AM
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Q30 Showcase of Cities and Towns Event
Answered: 92

Skipped: 7
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PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Very well done and a fun time for all involved.

9/6/2018 12:06 PM

2

only criticism was food quality

8/30/2018 5:59 PM

3

This is always a great event.

8/29/2018 11:36 AM

4

Way too crowded; couldn't get close to many of the booths.

8/29/2018 8:50 AM

5

Surprised on number of youngsters which I thought took away networking opportunities. Area
seemed a little crowded.

8/28/2018 6:24 PM

6

Fun!!

8/28/2018 5:23 PM

7

Always a great event!

8/28/2018 4:26 PM

8

Always a fun time

8/28/2018 3:42 PM

9

It was my first time attending and I was very impressed with the setups and the networking
opportunities. Thank you.

8/28/2018 3:33 PM

10

It was great to see what each city/town showcased. One of the most important aspect of the
conference is to learn more about the state as a whole and one can really get a good feel from
their booths.

8/28/2018 3:03 PM

11

Fun! And informative

8/28/2018 2:46 PM

12

Awesome as always

8/28/2018 2:42 PM

13

Great Session. better than last year which was great due to having dinner tables in proximity of
Showcases1 Very Enjoyable from a people friendly perspective.

8/28/2018 2:22 PM

14

It was very well presented, and people took great pride in showing off their cities and towns

8/28/2018 2:19 PM
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Q31 Tuesday - Welcome Reception
Answered: 88

Skipped: 11
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#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Didn't get there in time.

8/28/2018 4:27 PM

2

Watermelon drink was not good

8/28/2018 3:03 PM

3

should separate AS dinner from welcome reception i heard comments

8/28/2018 2:25 PM
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Q32 Tuesday - APS Dinner
Answered: 88

Skipped: 11
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#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Food was okay.

9/3/2018 7:07 AM

2

Great food

8/28/2018 3:03 PM

3

Worst food ever

8/28/2018 2:53 PM

4

I enjoyed the speakers and particularly enjoyed seeing the impact of APS on Puerto Rico's
tragedy.

8/28/2018 2:20 PM
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Q33 Wednesday - Dinner, President's Update and Entertainment
Answered: 89

Skipped: 10
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#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Very well done.

9/6/2018 12:08 PM

2

Food was better then the night before.

9/3/2018 7:07 AM

3

Entertainment was excellent

9/1/2018 3:27 PM

4

The band was amazing!

8/31/2018 6:20 PM

5

one of the best

8/30/2018 6:00 PM

6

Food was awful

8/28/2018 2:53 PM

7

However, chicken too many times

8/28/2018 2:45 PM

8

Entertainment was excellent!

8/28/2018 2:42 PM

9

A little bit long.

8/28/2018 2:24 PM

10

Outstanding Band

8/28/2018 2:16 PM
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Q34 Thursday - Legislative and Service Award Luncheon
Answered: 90

Skipped: 9
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#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Very well done. Just a little too long.

9/6/2018 12:08 PM

2

Excellent except for Fernandez & Rios’ speeches:)

8/31/2018 6:20 PM

3

Way too long.

8/29/2018 8:51 AM

4

Bidwill was the highlite

8/28/2018 4:27 PM

5

Too long

8/28/2018 4:15 PM

6

Mike Bidwill was great!

8/28/2018 3:47 PM

7

The food was questionable

8/28/2018 3:43 PM

8

The presentations were good but there were far too many speakers and the event went about 2
hours too long.

8/28/2018 3:04 PM

9

Great salad

8/28/2018 2:53 PM

10

This drags on way to long...

8/28/2018 2:50 PM

11

Queue up winners to save time

8/28/2018 2:47 PM

12

Too long. Do awards during lunch. 2 hours is too much.

8/28/2018 2:43 PM

13

should have had some recognition of Sen. McCain

8/28/2018 2:39 PM

14

very long

8/28/2018 2:26 PM

15

Enjoyed Bill Bidwell's presentation & history

8/28/2018 2:16 PM

16

Lunch not that great! and skimpy

8/28/2018 2:14 PM
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Q35 Friday - Speed Networking Breakfast for Municipal Officials
Answered: 80

Skipped: 19
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#

PLEASE PROVIDE ANY COMMENTS HERE.

DATE

1

Personally I wish this is in the beginning of the week b

9/3/2018 7:07 AM

2

Great interactive exercise

8/28/2018 2:47 PM
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Q36 Please rate your overall satisfaction with resort accommodations.
Answered: 91

Skipped: 8
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TOTAL
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4.11

#

OTHER (PLEASE SPECIFY)

DATE

1

Parking was tough Otherwise Excellent

9/6/2018 11:35 PM

2

11 on a scale of 1 to 10

9/6/2018 7:49 PM

3

Amazing resort. 1st time there

8/31/2018 6:21 PM

4

I vote to go to the Phoenician EVERY YEAR!

8/31/2018 12:24 PM

5

beautiful place, staff was friendly

8/30/2018 6:05 PM

6

Beautiful facility and outstanding service.

8/29/2018 8:56 AM

7

Left waiting in parking for "distracted" attendant who never returned.

8/28/2018 4:30 PM

8

Had to walk so much to get from room to meeting area so hard from me to walk very much without
painful

8/28/2018 3:22 PM

9

I cannot tell you how much I learned about the State and the way the Towns can work together or
at odds. Thank you very much.

8/28/2018 3:05 PM

10

Staff was AMAZING. Rooms were big. AC was the only problem I had. Rooms were very hot.

8/28/2018 3:04 PM

11

To expensive

8/28/2018 2:56 PM

12

Not enough parking, staff not accomodating to vendors setting up booths, had incident that
required security and security team was HORRID. Overall not at all pleased with the resort or its
accomodations.

8/28/2018 2:51 PM

13

Parking sucked. Spaces way too small, and if you paid, too expensive. Rooms Too expensive.

8/28/2018 2:44 PM

14

Beautiful property, warm and professional staff.

8/28/2018 2:26 PM

15

except prices were above for quality in food.

8/28/2018 2:26 PM

16

Nice facilities. Easy access and lots of parking!

8/28/2018 2:21 PM
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Q37 Please let us know what worked well and what we can do to improve
the League Annual Conference for next year.
Answered: 43

Skipped: 56

#

RESPONSES

DATE

1

More Rural centric presentations or tracts

9/6/2018 11:35 PM

2

I was unable to attend many of the sessions due to the fact that I was on other committees.
However; I thought the League event was very well done.

9/6/2018 12:10 PM

3

The facilities were great, but the parking options were atrocious. Please consider the high volume
of commuters (especially invited guests) when selecting future venues.

9/4/2018 10:04 AM

4

The service in the restaurant was way to slow. The breakfast restaurant caused us to be late with
there slow service. The property is verry spread out with little timely rides. It was difficult to get to
places on time, old people move slower and could use better concederation.

9/3/2018 11:11 PM

5

Parking was impossible and rooms too far from meeting rooms. Food was excellent. Resort staff
very helpfull

9/3/2018 8:09 AM

6

No complaints or suggestions-everything from food to classes to speakers and accommodations
were wonderful. Thanks for all the league does in our behalf!

9/2/2018 12:27 PM

7

I really appreciate and thank the league members for inviting and hosting the legislators. What a
great opportunity to spend quality time with our elected municipal officials.

8/31/2018 6:21 PM

8

I always love attending the conference. The league staff is amazing and the program is excellent!
Great job!

8/31/2018 8:31 AM

9

challenge every year to make it to concurrent sessions. Difficult when you have two good sessions
and have to make a choice. Showcase - wish we could recruit more cities to participate President's
has improved over the years. Very well done - pace, food, entertainment. Luncheon - gets to be
long with awards. But, don't cut guest speaker if it's a good one. Couldn't attend Friday this year,
but keep the good content. I've seen good speakers in the past. Not a wasted day. I wonder how
we can create more quality engagement between cities at the beginning? maybe it's just the
receptions and private parties - I do meet many others, but not all

8/30/2018 6:05 PM

10

League staff did an exceptional job once again. I appreciate how helpful they are - especially at the
registration desk. Venues with enough rooms and parking are keys to continued success.

8/30/2018 4:44 PM

11

This is my first year at the Conference and I am on town council in Clifton, I did not find many
things relevant to small/rural towns. To towns like Clifton, Flagstaff and Prescott are not rural in
comparison. I just wish there were more session on what we struggle with. The sessions were too
long, 45 minutes and more sessions would have been much better. I loved the town show case
and hope to showcase our town next year, just a great way in encourage Arizona staycations to
keep the money in our state.

8/30/2018 12:23 PM

12

Please indicate which courses qualify for Continuing Legal Education (CLE) credit on the League
schedule and information pamphlet. In the past, the League has done this and it's helpful for
attorneys. Thank you!

8/30/2018 10:32 AM

13

Meeting in centrally located Phoenix was a strong positive for convenience of attendees from
around the state. Meeting rooms could have been a little bit warmer though as many of us got cold
sitting there all day. Accommodations were very good as was the service.

8/29/2018 2:07 PM

14

I'd like to see a bit more dealing with rural communities...all aspects: economic development,
working with an older constituents, etc.

8/29/2018 11:44 AM

15

The Youth program on finding a job was fantastic!

8/29/2018 10:51 AM

16

Need to find a way to open up the Showcase so it's not so congested. Bruce Vincent was
outstanding. The breakout sessions were excellent for the most part. Some topics were repetitive
year-over-year, but that's okay. Food was great. Loved that rural communities were part of the
breakout session mix. Of the three conferences I've attended, it was the best. Good job everyone!

8/29/2018 8:56 AM

37 / 39

2018 League Annual Conference Survey
17

When having youth leagues please make sure to explain why the vendors are present \ how much
money they paid to be there\ and how to conduct themselves when visiting. They were all well
behaved and respectful but I didn't plan on have additional items for all the kids to participate. I feel
they should have been instructed to visit the College booths only, as those were specific to there
interests and needs. I liked having the food service near our booths - I feel it brought additional
traffic and one on one time. The convention really ran flawlessly and I would like to tell you how
much I appreciate all the hard work and your team did. Thank you for a good show.

8/29/2018 7:24 AM

18

Conference site was so spread out that it did hinder opportunity for networking. Beautiful site
though.

8/28/2018 8:12 PM

19

Lunch and breakfast options somewhat limited.

8/28/2018 6:26 PM

20

Continue doing what you are doing, it is working well.

8/28/2018 5:42 PM

21

get some place where the resturant can handle the crowed

8/28/2018 4:40 PM

22

Your organization always does a top-notch job. Just keep doing what you do; thank you.

8/28/2018 4:30 PM

23

One suggestion is to provide a way to recycle/re-use the name badges. I just end up throwing mine
away after the conference. Maybe provide a receptacle at the end of the conference for people to
drop them in...would save a few bucks. :)

8/28/2018 4:01 PM

24

Conference should be held outside of Maricopa County every year

8/28/2018 3:43 PM

25

More for smaller towns Mostly everything is good that is put out for us to learn thank you

8/28/2018 3:22 PM

26

Cost. They all know we’re coming so they jack up the price. I think whoever pick the resorts need
to work on price. Drinks at the Phoenician we're rediculas.

8/28/2018 2:56 PM

27

It was a great conference overall.

8/28/2018 2:52 PM

28

Golf at the same resort

8/28/2018 2:51 PM

29

It seems that there are not enough rooms available at the host hotel..we tried to get reservations
the next day after we got the email and all rooms were booked...do some communities have
forward knowledge prior to the email going out?

8/28/2018 2:50 PM

30

There is plenty of time to repeat sessions on Friday. Get better use out of the presentations that
speakers prepared and city officials would benefit from.

8/28/2018 2:49 PM

31

Great venue, f&b, speakers and diverse topics

8/28/2018 2:47 PM

32

Continue to hold the entire conference at one location.

8/28/2018 2:46 PM

33

Have more parking. Have conference at El Tovar. That would really be something and would help
out N. AZ instead of central or southern for a change.

8/28/2018 2:44 PM

34

Enjoyed it. Please see specific sessions. Would love to serve or speak on a section.

8/28/2018 2:44 PM

35

Many of the sessions are not applicable to small towns...it would be great to have some sessions
geared to small communities.

8/28/2018 2:43 PM

36

more time for Q&A at seminars. Next year, we need to have nice salute to Sen. McCain efforts as
a dedicated public official

8/28/2018 2:40 PM

37

I like that I was not at an overflow resort. Staying at the hotel conference is nice I could attend all
sessions and not have to commute on a bus.

8/28/2018 2:29 PM

38

This was my first year. The League staff does such a beautiful job of organizing these events.
Don't know enough yet to complain. :)

8/28/2018 2:26 PM

39

seperate APS dinner from welcome reception.

8/28/2018 2:26 PM

40

Not much to improve upon as this year's conference was over the top. Thank You!

8/28/2018 2:25 PM

41

My only critique was that on Friday, there should have been an opportunity for a few of the key
seminars to be repeated. When you are only able to make one at each session, there were
definitely some that I would have liked the chance to have repeated and Friday AM would have
been a good time for that. There were many good choices, but not enough opportunities to attend.

8/28/2018 2:22 PM

42

For the youth portion please keep the speakers to the allotted time and invite a new speaker to
inform the attendees of how they can better contribute to their communities. The speaker was
good but it was the same message as last year. Try someone more interactive and uplifting

8/28/2018 2:16 PM
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43

Hold conference in a more central location near Center/middle of Arizona and not during hottest
months in Southern Az. Going North to Flagstaff area would be nice.

39 / 39

8/28/2018 2:14 PM

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 2, 2018

Agenda Item #5

Cities and Towns Week 2018 and Other Communication Updates

Summary:

Update on 2018 Arizona Cities and Towns Week, League social media
activities and AZCities @ Work. Also plans for social media
engagement in the upcoming legislative session and possible revisions to
the League website.

Responsible Person:

Matt Lore, Communication & Education Director
Samantha Womer, Member Services Associate

Attachment:

Information on social media activities, 2018 Arizona Cities and Towns
Week and AZCities @ Work

The League keeps in touch with cities and towns and continuously promotes the work of Arizona’s
municipalities through its variety of social media accounts.

Instagram – The League’s Instagram
includes a behind-the-scenes look at
the daily operations of the League,
highlights events and showcases
stories from cities and towns.

Stats: Comparison of
Instagram Followers
League of Arizona Cities & Towns:
1,037 Followers
Texas Municipal League:
789 Followers
Florida League of Cities:
707 Followers
National League of Cities:
1,284 Followers

League Communication Update

Arizona Cities Social Media

League Communication Update

Arizona Cities Social Media Cont.
Twitter – The League maintains two
Twitter accounts - @AZCities and
@AZCitiesWork. While @AZCities
provides updates on legislation and
information about the League and
upcoming trainings, the @AZCitiesWork
account shares the stories of our
municipalities.

Twitter Cont.

Stats: Comparison of
Twitter Followers
AZ Cities @ Work:
778 Followers
League of Arizona Cities & Towns:
4,810 Followers
Kentucky League of Cities:
3,906 Followers
League of Wisconsin Municipalities:
3,256 Followers

League Communication Update

Arizona Cities Social Media Cont.

League Communication Update

Arizona Cities Social Media, Cont.
Facebook – The Arizona Cities @ Work
campaign maintains Facebook as a place
to highlight municipalities and the services
they provide.

Stats: Comparison of
Facebook Likes
AZ Cities @ Work: 791 Likes
Pennsylvania Municipal League: 202 Likes
Virginia Municipal League: 602 Likes
Ohio Municipal League: 577 Likes
Oklahoma Municipal League: 887 Likes

At the League’s Annual Conference in Scottsdale, the League connected with conference attendees
through the creation and use of a mobile app. Additionally, conference-goers interacted through Twitter
and Instagram, through the shared #LACT18.

League Communication Update

League Annual Conference Social Media & App

League Communication Update

League Annual Conference Social Media & App Cont.

As part of the League’s traditional print communications, we create a bi-annual magazine publication,
Arizona City & Town. This publication is sent to elected officials and municipal staff in all 91 cities
and towns, in addition to members of the Arizona legislature, other state municipal leagues and
additional organizations.
The Spring 2018 issue of Arizona City & Town featured a look into the future, showcasing an article
on “Suburbs, Sprawl and Sustainability,” written by Grady Gammage, Jr.
The Winter 2019 issue of Arizona City & Town will feature municipal airports and will be hitting
mailboxes at year-end.

League Communication Update

Arizona City & Town Magazine

League Communication Update

AZ Cities & Towns Week – Municipal Toolkit
To celebrate the 17th Annual Cities & Towns Week and assist the cities and towns in participating,
the League once again created an online toolkit, which featured a variety of tools, including sample
press releases, social media messaging and event ideas.

Arizona’s cities and towns participated in the 17th Annual Cities & Towns Week in a variety of ways!

Proclamations – Many cities and towns
issued proclamations to let their citizens
know they were participating in Arizona
Cities & Towns Week.

League Communication Update

AZ Cities & Towns Week Participation

League Communication Update

Press Releases, Websites & Articles
Other municipalities issued press releases and updated their websites. A few news outlets even
helped spread the word about the celebration!
Cities and towns also held events to commemorate Cities and Towns Week, like hosting a series
of forums about the variety of services municipalities provide.

Many cities and towns used their social media accounts to interact with us and promote Cities & Towns
Week within their cities and towns. Cities and Towns took to Facebook, Twitter and Instagram to share
about the week.

Thank you to all of our cities and towns
who participated in the 17th Annual
Arizona Cities & Towns Week!

League Communication Update

Social Media

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 2, 2018

Agenda Item #6

2017-2018 Audit Report; Audit Firm Contract

Summary:

The report from the annual audit of the League of Arizona Cities and
Towns is presented for your review and approval.
The Property Corporation of Cities and Towns is a separate nonprofit
organization which owns and operates the League building. However,
rather than prepare a separate audit for the Property Corporation, our
auditors have recommended that it be included in the League’s financial
statement. The audit report you have implements that recommendation.
The League contracts with a private accounting firm to perform the
annual audits. The contract length is three years. The contract with
CliftonLarsonAllen expired at the end of the 2018 audit. Staff
recommends renewing the contract with CliftonLarsonAllen for another
three years.

Responsible Person:

Ken Strobeck

Attachment:

Audit Report for FY ended June 30, 2018
Letter from CliftonLarsonAllen (Quote for 2019, 2020, 2021)
Audit cost history

Action Requested:

Approval of Audit Report
Approval of new 3-year contract

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Phoenix, Arizona
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (League) for the year
ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated October 1, 2018. We have previously
communicated to you information about our responsibilities under auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain
information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.
Significant audit findings
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices
Accounting policies
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the League of Arizona Cities and Towns are described in Note 1 to the
financial statements.
No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed
during 2018.
We noted no transactions entered into by the League during the year for which there is a lack of
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial
statements in the proper period.
Accounting estimates
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions
about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their
significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them
may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial
statements were:


Management’s estimate of the useful lives and remaining useful lives of capital assets is based
on the League’s previous experience and current condition of capital assets. We evaluated the
key factors and assumptions used to develop the useful lives and remaining useful lives in
determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Page 2

Accounting estimates (Continued)
 Management’s estimate of compensated absences is based on employees who have currently
vested and those who are expected to vest. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions
used to develop compensated absences balance in determining that it is reasonable in relation
to the financial statements taken as a whole.


Management’s estimate of the pension liability is based on actuarial assumptions prepared by a
third-party actuary. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the pension
liability in determining it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Financial statement disclosures
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to
financial statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties encountered in performing the audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing
our audit.
Uncorrected misstatements
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The
attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management
has determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole.
Corrected misstatements
None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management
were material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.
Disagreements with management
For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our audit.
Management representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated October 1, 2018.

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Page 3

Management consultations with other independent accountants
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation
involves application of an accounting principle to the League’s financial statements or a determination
of the type of auditors’ opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards
require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant
facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.
Significant issues discussed with management prior to engagement
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the League’s auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our
responses were not a condition to our engagement.
Other information in documents containing audited financial statements
With respect to the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements,
we made certain inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether
the RSI has been measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the
methods of measurement and preparation have been changed from the prior period and the reasons
for any such changes, and whether there were any significant assumptions or interpretations underlying
the measurement or presentation of the RSI. We compared the RSI for consistency with management’s
responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge obtained
during the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide
sufficient evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.
Our auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should
only be used in their entirety. Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare,
such as an annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document.
* * *
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and
management of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns and is not intended to be, and should not be,
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
October 1, 2018

Board of Directors
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Description

Debit

Credit

PAJE #1
To record the OPEB Liability related to ASRS.
Pension Asset

$

Unrestricted Net Position
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows of Resources
OPEB Expense
$

2,198

$

-

-

262

-

8,458

7,882

-

-

1,360

10,080

$

10,080
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Phoenix, Arizona
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (League), as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the League’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the League’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the League’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

(1)

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the major fund, the aggregate remaining
fund information, and the General Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance – Budget and Actual of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and the schedule of the League’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability and contributions, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
October 1, 2018, on our consideration of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the League’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
October 1, 2018

(2)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

We, the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (the League), are pleased to provide an overview of our
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The intended purpose of the Management
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is to provide an introduction to the basic financial statements and
notes, that provides an objective and easy to read analysis of our financial activities based on currently
known facts, decisions, and conditions, by providing an easily readable summary of operating results
and reasons for changes, which will help to determine if our financial position improved or deteriorated
over the past year. This report addresses current operational activities, the sources, uses, and changes
in resources, adherence to budget, service levels, limitations, and significant economic factors.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
 While the League does not have any governmental authority, it is an instrumentality of the
incorporated cities and towns, created and operated for their benefit. It is governed by elected
city and town officials and its only members are the cities and towns of Arizona. Therefore, the
League reports under Government Accounting Standards based on the composition of
the board.
 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns
exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $756,378 (net position). Of this amount, $298,964 is invested in capital assets while
unrestricted net position had a surplus balance of $457,414.
 As of the close of the current fiscal year, the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ general fund
reported an ending fund balance of $2,352,195, an increase of $254,405 in comparison with the
prior year.
 At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was
$2,305,331 or 84% of total General Fund expenditures.
 General Fund revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $147,582 for fiscal year 2018.
Additionally, expenditures were less than budget by $140,017 in the General Fund.
 General Fund revenues were more than expenditures by $254,405; a positive variance of
$287,599 from the budget.
 The League includes one separate legal entity in its report - The Property Corporation of
Arizona Cities and Towns. Although legally separate, the “component unit” is important because
the League is financially accountable. A description of the component unit is available in Note 1
on page 20. Separate Financial Statements are not available for this entity.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the League’s basic financial
statements. The League’s financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) governmentwide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements.
In addition to the basic financial statements, this report also includes a Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit Performed in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

(3)

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Government-Wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. The
statement of net position presents information on all of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns is
improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the League’s net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected dues or fees and earned but unused vacation leave).
The governmental activities of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns include general government
expenses provided to support Arizona governments. The government-wide financial statements also
include the activity of the Property Corporation, reported as an internal service fund, included as a
blended component unit. The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10 - 11 of
this report.
Fund Financial Statements
Also presented are the traditional fund financial statements for governmental funds. The fund financial
statements focus on major funds of the League, rather than fund type. A fund is a grouping of related
accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The League of Arizona Cities and Towns, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns can be divided into two
categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements. Since the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
spendable resources, while the governmental activities on the government-wide financial statements
have a longer term focus, a reconciliation of the differences between the two is provided with the fund
financial statements. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 12 - 16
of this report.
Proprietary Funds – The League of Arizona Cities and Towns maintains one type of proprietary fund.
The internal service fund is an accounting device used to account for the activity of the Property
Corporation that owns and operates the League’s office space. Because these services predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The basic proprietary fund financial statements
can be found on pages 17 - 19 of this report.
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements
The notes to the basic financial statements (pages 20 - 33) provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial
statements and should be read with the financial statements.
Required Supplementary Information Other Than MD&A
Governments have an option of including the budgetary comparison statements for the General Fund
and major special revenue funds as either part of the fund financial statements within the basic financial
statements or as required supplementary information after the footnotes. The League has chosen to
present these budgetary statements as part of the basic financial statements.
The League reports the schedule of the League’s proportionate share of the net pension liability and
contributions following the notes to the financial statements on page 34.
Government-Wide Financial Analysis
Net Position
Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. Table A-1
reflects the condensed statement of net position of the League at June 30, 2018 showing that assets
and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $756,378.
The League does not currently have any enterprise funds that would otherwise be classified as
business-type activities; all funds are considered governmental activities.
Table A-1
Net Position
Governmental Activities
2018
Assets
Current and Other Assets
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable (Net)
Total Assets

$

2,858,611

2017
$

2,616,050

Percent
Change
9.3 %

51,611
247,353
3,157,575

51,611
254,084
2,921,745

(2.6)
8.1

295,194

387,898

(23.9)

418,203

433,786

(3.6)

77,947
2,060,976
2,557,126

79,148
2,158,052
2,670,986

(1.5)
(4.5)
(4.3)

Deferred Inflows of Resources

139,265

157,825

(11.8)

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

298,964
457,414
756,378

305,695
175,137
480,832

(2.2)
161.2
57.3

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Liabilities
Other Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

$
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The League of Arizona Cities and Towns’ net investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
furniture, fixtures and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding is the majority of the League’s total net position. The League of Arizona Cities and Towns
uses these capital assets to provide services to Arizona governments and its members; consequently,
these assets are not available for future spending. The unrestricted net position can be used for
ongoing League operations. The League does not have any restricted net position, other than those
invested in capital assets.
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities. Table A-2 compares the revenue and expenses for the current and prior year.
The program revenues include charges for services and intergovernmental revenues that are clearly
identifiable to an operating function of governmental activities. The League’s revenues are not identified
with any operating function and are therefore reported as general revenues.
Table A-2
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities
2018
REVENUES
General Revenues:
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Meetings
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Rental Revenue
Other Income
Total Revenues

$

EXPENSES
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Maintenance Services and Agreements
Depreciation
Total Expenses

136,950
477,125
2,044,236
151,056
15,430
182,756
3,007,553

2017

$

136,950
495,987
1,938,081
147,314
14,159
104,103
2,836,594

Percent
Change

-%
(3.8)
5.5
2.5
9.0
75.6
6.0
9.6
(7.7)
(38.8)
(57.3)
1.0
(3.8)
(6.4)
10.2
(0.4)
1.6
8.3
(0.0)

1,906,394
315,799
208,594
4,019
13,125
64,462
59,196
6,392
67,981
64,118
21,927
2,732,007

1,738,979
342,178
341,105
9,408
12,996
67,010
63,218
5,802
68,234
63,095
20,253
2,732,278

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

275,546

104,316

164.1

Net Position - Beginning of Year

480,832

376,516

27.7

480,832

57.3

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$
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Revenues increased $170,959. The major increase in revenues included a $106,155 increase in
membership dues, and a $78,653 increase in other revenues. The increase in revenues from
membership dues was the result of an increase in the dues formula adopted by the Executive
Committee. The cities and towns pay varying dues based on population thresholds.
The increase in other revenues was largely due to a new special assessment ($55,893) for a cost
sharing program adopted by the Executive Committee to recoup prior year legal expenses.
Expenses remained flat over the previous fiscal year. The major changes in expense line items
included a $167,415 increase in salaries and employee benefits, a $132,511 decrease in consultant
and professional services, and a $26,379 decrease in annual conference, seminars, and travel
expenses.
The 9.6% increase in salaries and employee benefits expense and the 38.8% decrease in consultant
and professional services is attributed to the hiring of the legislative director as a salaried employee.
This position was previously paid as a contract consultant in prior year. This resulted in more salaries
and benefits, and less consultant and professional services expense.
The 7.7% decrease in annual conferences, seminars, and travel is largely attributed to the difference in
facility costs of the previous year’s annual conference host hotel and increased attendance. The annual
conference, seminars, and travel budget categories are unpredictable and vary from year to year.
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE LEAGUE’S FUNDS
The focus of the League’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of resources that are available for spending. Such information is useful in assessing the
League’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of the League’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. The League
only reports one governmental fund - the General Fund. The General Fund is the chief operating fund
of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns.
As of the end of the current fiscal year, the League’s General Fund reported an ending fund balance of
$2,352,195, an increase of $254,405 in comparison with the prior year. As a measure of the General
Fund’s liquidity, it is useful to compare the General Fund fund balance and total fund expenditures. The
General Fund unassigned fund balance represents 84% of total General Fund expenditures.
The increase in revenues from membership dues was the result of an increase in the dues formula
adopted by the Executive Committee. The cities and towns pay varying dues based on population
thresholds.
The increase in revenues from special assessment was the result of a cost sharing program adopted by
the Executive Committee to recoup prior year legal expenses.
In addition to the changes in revenues, the League reported an increase in General Fund expenditures
of $32,634. The increase in expenditures was the result of the convergence of several factors: salaries
and employee benefits increased $208,592 primarily due to the hiring of a previously contracted
Legislative Director as well as salary increases of approximately 3% from the prior year. The hiring of
the Legislative Director as a salaried employee caused a corresponding decrease in consultant and
professional services expense of $132,761. Additionally, annual conference, seminar, and travel
expenses decreased due to less seminars being held during the current year.

(7)

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
The League’s annual budget is the legally adopted expenditure control document of the League.
Budgetary comparison statements are required for the General Fund and all major special revenue
funds and may be found on page 16. This statement compares the original adopted budget, the budget
if amended throughout the fiscal year, and the actual expenditures prepared on a budgetary basis. The
League did not amend its budget during the fiscal year.
General Fund revenues of $2,990,388 exceeded budgeted revenues of $2,842,806 by $147,582 and
expenditures of $2,735,983 fell below budgeted expenditures of $2,876,000 by $140,017.
The excess of revenues over budget was largely due to $49,795 excess revenues over budget for
annual conference fees and $55,893 excess revenues over budget for special assessment revenues.
The excess of revenues over budget was due to the unpredictable nature of these budget categories.
The annual conference revenues exceeded budget due to the usual variables that affect each annual
conference. These variables include registration fees, location, and sponsorships. Every year is
different based on the location of the conference as well as the economy at the time. Typically
conferences held in the Valley have a higher attendance rate than those outside of the Valley. The
FY18 conference was held in Tucson and therefore attendance was anticipated to be lower than the
prior year. The League kept the budget consistent with the prior fiscal year; however, the current year
conference attendance exceeded expectations. Sponsorship revenue is highly unpredictable from year
to year.
In the current year, the Executive Committee adopted a cost sharing program to recoup prior year legal
expenses that were deemed to be spent to the benefit of members. This resulted in special assessment
revenue in excess of budget of $55,893.
Major expenditure budget variances during the current fiscal year included salaries and benefits falling
below budget by $117,473, consultant and professional services exceeded budget by $36,224, and
rent, utilities, and communication falling below budget by $51,520. Salaries and benefits fell below
budget due to the hiring of the previously contracted legislative director as a salaried employee and
overestimating budgeted expenditures. The consultant and professional services exceeded budget due
to higher than expected contracted lobbying expenditures. This position was previously paid through
salaries, but midway through the year was paid through a contract consultant. The annual conference,
seminars, and travel line item exceeded budget due to higher hotel costs for the annual conference and
additional seminars.
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
The League’s capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2018 amount to $298,964 (net
of accumulated depreciation), a decrease of 2%. For government-wide financial statement
presentation, all depreciable capital assets were depreciated from acquisition date to the end of the
current fiscal year. Governmental fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as
expenditures, whereas the proprietary fund financial statements record capital asset purchases as
assets. See Note 3.A.2. in the Notes to the Financial Statements for further information regarding
capital assets.
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
 Computer software for $6,858, and building improvements to a computer server room for
$8,338.
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Table A-3 provides a breakdown of the capital assets of the League at June 30, 2018 and 2017.
Table A-3
Capital Assets (Net)
Governmental Activities

Land
Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment and Furniture
Total Capital Assets

$

$

2018
51,611
231,691
15,662
298,964

$

$

2017
51,611
242,414
11,670
305,695

Percent
Change
-%
(4.4)
34.2

The League did not have any outstanding bonded indebtedness.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES
The 2019 budget was constructed with minimal increases to overall expected revenues and expenses.
Spending will remain conservative.
REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the League’s finances for all of those
with an interest in the League’s finances and to demonstrate accountability for the use of those funds.
Questions about any of the information provided in this report, or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to:
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
1820 West Washington Street
Phoenix, AZ 85007
Or visit our website at:
http://www.azleague.org
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Prepaid Items

$

Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable Assets
Total Capital Assets
Total Assets

2,780,619
33,924
44,068

51,611
247,353
298,964
3,157,575

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflow of Resources Related to Pension Liability

295,194

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due in More Than One Year
Total Liabilities

43,145
375,058
77,947
2,060,976
2,557,126

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflow of Resources Related to Pension Liability

139,265

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

298,964
457,414

Total Net Position

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS
Governmental Activities:
General Government:
Expenses:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Maintenance Services and Agreements
Depreciation
Total Expenses

$

General Revenues:
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Rental Revenue
Seminars and Meetings
Partnership Programs
Special Assessment
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total General Revenues

1,906,394
315,799
208,594
4,019
13,125
64,462
59,196
6,392
67,981
64,118
21,927
2,732,007

136,950
444,795
2,044,236
151,056
15,430
32,330
69,510
55,893
18,187
39,166
3,007,553

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

275,546

Net Position - Beginning of Year

480,832

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

General
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Investments
Accounts Receivable, Net
Prepaid Items
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Total Liabilities

$

2,689,188
26,054
46,864

$

2,762,106

$

39,175
370,736
409,911

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable for Prepaid Items
Unassigned
Total Fund Balance

46,864
2,305,331
2,352,195

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Total fund balances for governmental funds

$

2,352,195

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources
and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. Those
assets consist of:
Governmental capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation
Capital assets used in governmental activities

$

100,615
(85,737)
14,878

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

295,194
(139,265)

Long-term liabilities, including compensated absences, are not due
and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in
the governmental funds.
Net pension liability
Compensated absence payable
Total long-term liabilities

(2,060,976)
(77,947)
(2,138,923)

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the
Internal Service Funds are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net position
Total net position of governmental activities

372,299
$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

General
Fund
REVENUES
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Seminars and Meetings
Partnership Programs
Special Assessment
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

136,950
444,795
2,044,236
151,056
32,330
69,510
55,893
16,489
39,129
2,990,388

1,930,527
315,799
201,224
4,019
7,715
64,462
59,196
6,392
129,480
17,169
2,735,983

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

254,405

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

2,097,790

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

$

254,405

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, assets are capitalized and the cost is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period.
Capital outlays - improvement costs
Depreciation expense
Net change in capital assets

$

6,858
(2,725)
4,133

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures
when made. However, in the statement of activities, pension expense
is the cost of benefits earned, adjusted for member contributions, the
recognition of changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources
related to pensions, and the investment experience.
Pension contributions
Pension expense

143,194
(120,262)
22,932

Compensated absences do not require the use of current financial
resources in the governmental funds and are therefore not reported
as expenditures in the governmental funds; however, the net change in
compensated absences is reported as a net increase or decrease
in the government-wide financial statements.

1,201

Internal Service Funds are used by management to charge rent for the
use of the facility owned by the property corporation. The net revenue
of the Internal Service Fund is reported with governmental activities.

(7,125)

Change in net position of governmental activities

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Original and
Final
Budget
REVENUES
Affiliate Group Contributions
Annual Conference
Membership Dues
Risk Management
Seminars and Meetings
Partnership Programs
Special Assessment
Miscellaneous
Investment Income
Total Revenues

$

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Salaries and Employee Benefits
Annual Conference, Seminars, and Travel
Consultant and Professional Services
Executive Committee
Insurance
Membership Dues and Subscriptions
Office Supplies, Printing, and Rentals
Postage and Shipping
Rent, Utilities, and Communication
Contingency
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

136,950
395,000
2,046,956
147,000
30,000
72,900
10,000
4,000
2,842,806

$

2,048,000
303,000
165,000
10,000
8,000
62,000
63,000
6,000
181,000
10,000
20,000
2,876,000

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES

2,105,844

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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$

287,599

2,097,790
$

2,352,195

49,795
(2,720)
4,056
2,330
(3,390)
55,893
6,489
35,129
147,582

117,473
(12,799)
(36,224)
5,981
285
(2,462)
3,804
(392)
51,520
10,000
2,831
140,017

254,405

2,139,038
$

136,950
444,795
2,044,236
151,056
32,330
69,510
55,893
16,489
39,129
2,990,388

Variance

1,930,527
315,799
201,224
4,019
7,715
64,462
59,196
6,392
129,480
17,169
2,735,983

(33,194)

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

Actual

(41,248)
$

246,351

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities Internal
Service Fund
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable, Net
Prepaid Items
Total Current Assets

$

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable
Depreciable (Net)
Total Assets

91,431
7,870
5,954
105,255

51,611
232,475
389,341

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

3,970
13,072
17,042

NET POSITION
Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

284,086
88,213

Total Net Position

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities Internal
Service Fund
OPERATING REVENUES
Rental Revenue
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

$

OPERATING EXPENSES
Utilities
Repairs and Maintenance Services and Agreements
Accounting and Auditing
Insurance
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses

120,430
1,698
122,128

43,501
53,807
7,370
5,410
19,202
129,290

OPERATING LOSS

(7,162)

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment Income

37

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

(7,125)

Net Position - Beginning of Year

379,424

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

$

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental
Activities Internal Service
Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to Suppliers
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

$

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Capital Assets

132,581
(111,239)
21,342

(8,338)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income

37

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

13,041

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

78,390

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR

$

91,431

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Loss

$

(7,162)

ADJUSTMENTS TO RECONCILE OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Depreciation Expense
Change in Assets/Liabilities:
Receivables
Prepaid Items
Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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19,202

$

2,317
(152)
(999)
8,136
21,342

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying financial statements of the League of Arizona Cities and Towns (the
League) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America applicable to governmental units adopted by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). A summary of the League’s more significant
accounting policies follows.
A. Reporting Entity
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns was established in 1937, and is a voluntary
association of all the incorporated cities and towns in Arizona. The League is comprised
of 91 members and provides legislative framework for municipal needs and concerns
and is a technical assistance resource for all of the incorporated communities in Arizona.
League policy is established by all members at the annual meeting and policy direction
is provided during the year by a 25 member Executive Committee composed of elected
officials from cities and towns around the state.
The accompanying financial statements present the League and its component unit
entity for which the League is considered to be financially accountable. Blended
component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
League’s operations.
Included within the reporting entity:
The Property Corporation of Arizona Cities and Towns is a nonprofit corporation which
was incorporated in 1970 as a 501(c)(4) by the incorporated cities and towns in the State
of Arizona to construct and operate the office space for the League and other
governmental units. The Corporation’s officers and board of directors consist of officers
and members of the Executive Committee for the League. The operations of the
Property Corporation of Arizona Cities and Towns are reported as an internal service
fund because the Property Corporation largely charges rent to the League and other
governmental entities. The activity is included in the governmental activities on the
League’s financial statements and is reported as a blended component unit because the
Corporation provides a financial benefit almost exclusively to the League of Arizona
Cities and Towns. Separate financial statements are not prepared for the Property
Corporation of Arizona Cities and Towns.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the
primary government and its component units. The effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which are normally supported
by intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The League did not
have any business-type activities.
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include
1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Internally dedicated resources such as
intergovernmental, membership dues, fees and other items are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. All revenues of the League are considered
to be general revenues.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary
funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Significant revenues susceptible to accrual
include dues, seminars and meetings, risk management, annual conference and
investment income and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Monies received in advance of the revenue recognition criteria are reported as
unearned revenues. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when cash is received by the League.
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the League
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as
under accrual accounting, except expenditures related to compensated absences which
are recorded only when payment is due.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)
The League reports the following major governmental funds:
General Fund – the General Fund is the League’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the League, except those required to be
accounted for in another fund.
Additionally, the League reports the following fund type:
Internal Service Fund – the Internal Service Fund accounts for the Property
Corporation’s financing of operating and maintaining office space provided to the
League and other governmental entities.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the internal service fund are rental
income charged to the League and other governmental entities. Operating expenses for
the internal service fund include the cost of maintaining the facilities and utilities. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.
When restricted, committed, assigned, or unassigned resources are available for use, for
governmental activities it is the League’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
committed, assigned and unassigned resources as they are needed.
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position or Equity
1. Deposits and Investments
Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
cash and investments held by the State Treasurer, and highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
State statutes authorize the League to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and
U.S. agencies, certificates of deposit in eligible depositories, repurchase
agreements, obligations of the State of Arizona or any of its counties or incorporated
cities, towns or duly organized school districts, improvement districts in this state and
the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool. Investments are stated at
fair value.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
2. Receivables
All receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
3. Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial
statements. Expenditures/expenses are recognized in the fund and government wide
financial statements when the goods or services are received.
4. Capital Assets
Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, and furniture,
fixtures and equipment, are reported in the governmental activities column in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the League as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $750 and an estimated useful life in
excess of one year.
Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost or estimated
historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at acquisition value as of the date
received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend
the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:
Buildings and Improvements
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment

10 to 40 Years
3 to 10 Years

5. Deferred Outflows of Resources
The difference between the expected and actual expenses for its actuarially
determined pension obligation is reported as a deferred outflow of resources and will
be amortized over a five-year period. Additionally, contributions made after the
measurement date for the League’s pension plan are reported as deferred outflows
of resources and will reduce the pension liability in the next fiscal year.
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NOTE 1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position or Equity (Continued)
6. Compensated Absences
The liability for compensated absences reported in the government-wide financial
statements consists of unpaid, accumulated leave balances. The liability has been
calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees
who currently are eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who
are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon
termination.
7. Pension Plans
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Arizona State Retirement System
(ASRS) and additions to/deductions from ASRS’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by ASRS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
8. Deferred Inflows of Resources
The League reports deferred inflows of resources for pension related inflows that will
be amortized in future periods.
9. Net Position
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is reported in three
categories: net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted
net position. Net investment capital assets are separately reported because the
League reports all of the League assets which make up a significant portion of total
net position. Restricted net position accounts for the portion of net position restricted
by parties outside the League. Unrestricted net position is the remaining net position
not included in the previous two categories. The League reported no restricted
net position.
10. Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund
balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation. The League has not
adopted a fund balance policy defining restricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund balances. The League, therefore, does not define the terms under
which committed fund balances become committed or are released from such a
commitment. In addition, the board has not designated an individual or group of
individuals the authority to assign fund balances. The League did not report any
restricted, committed, or assigned fund balances.
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NOTE 2

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information
The League’s budget policy provides that the Executive Committee adopt and approve
an annual budget. The budget for the General Fund is prepared on the modified accrual
basis of accounting.

NOTE 3

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Assets
1. Deposits and Investments
Deposits and investments at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:
Deposits:
Cash in Bank
Investments:
State Treasurer’s Investment Pool
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

$

275,352

$

2,505,267
2,780,619

Deposits
At June 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the League’s deposits was $275,352 and
the bank balance was $330,017 which was fully insured by federal depository
insurance.
Investments
Investments consist of funds invested with the Local Government Investment Pool,
an external investment pool. The League’s investment, stated at fair value, is not
identified with specific investments. Its investment in the pool has a net asset value
that approximates $1.00.
Interest Rate Risk – The League does not have an investment policy that addresses
interest rate risk; however, the League manages its exposure to declines in fair
values by limiting its investments to the Local Government Investment Pool which
has a weighted average maturity of 25 days.
Credit Risk – The State Board of Deposit provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s
pools, and the Local Government Investment Pool Advisory Committee provides
consultation and advice to the Treasurer. The fair value of a participant’s position in
the pool approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares. The shares are not
identified with specific investments and are not subject to custodial credit risk. The
LGIP maintains a rating of AAA from Moody’s.
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NOTE 3

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
A. Assets (Continued)
1. Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk – For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the League will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.
The League currently does not have a policy with regard to custodial credit risk. The
League’s investments consist only of funds deposited with the Local Government
Investment Pool which is overseen by the State Board of Deposits.
2. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:
Beginning
Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land

$

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment and Furniture
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Building Improvements
Equipment and Furniture
Total Accumulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net

$

51,611

Increases

$

-

Ending
Balance

Decreases

$

-

$

51,611

744,691
130,980
875,671

8,338
6,858
15,196

-

753,029
137,838
890,867

(502,277)
(119,310)
(621,587)
254,084
305,695

(19,061)
(2,866)
(21,927)
(6,731)
(6,731)

-

(521,338)
(122,176)
(643,514)
247,353
298,964

$

$

$

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:
Governmental Activities:
General Government
Internal Service Fund
Total Depreciation Expense,
Governmental Activities

$

2,725
19,202

$

21,927

B. Unearned Revenue
Resources received are recognized as unearned revenue to the extent that the earnings
process has not been completed. These resources are recorded as revenue when the
related obligations have been satisfied. As of June 30, 2018, the League reported
$370,736 of unearned revenue in the governmental funds and $375,058 of unearned
revenues in the governmental activities. Unearned revenue was largely composed of
summer conference registration fees, sponsorship revenues and membership dues.
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NOTE 3

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (CONTINUED)
C. Obligations Under Operating Leases
The League leases copiers and other equipment under the provisions of long-term lease
agreements classified as operating leases. Rental expenditures under the terms of the
operating leases totaled $3,027 for the year ended June 30, 2018.
The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2019
2020
2021
Total

$

$

Amount
3,027
3,027
1,261
7,315

D. Long-Term Debt
The compensated absences are paid entirely by the General Fund of the League.
Changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2018 are as follows:
Beginning
of Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences

NOTE 4

$

Additions

79,148

$

122,711

End of
Year

Retirements
$

(123,912)

$

77,947

Due within
One Year
$

77,947

OTHER INFORMATION
A. Risk Management
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns is exposed to various risks of loss related to
torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions, and
natural disasters.
The League carries commercial insurance for all risks of loss, including workers’
compensation and employee health and accident insurance. Settled claims resulting
from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage during any of the
past three fiscal years and no significant reduction in insurance coverage during the last
fiscal year.
B. Economic Dependence
The League receives 68% of its revenues from membership dues and 15% from its
annual conference. The League’s operations depend on continued support from these
funding sources.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
C. Commitments
On June 11, 2015, the League signed a commitment with a hotel for the 2018 Annual
Conference. At June 30, 2018, the League is liable for $125,000 if the League cancels
the agreement.
On November 11, 2017, the League signed a commitment with a hotel for the 2019
Annual Conference. At June 30, 2018, the League is liable for $56,593 if the League
cancels the agreement.
D. Retirement Plans
The League contributes to the Arizona Statement Retirement System pension plan
described below. The plan is a component unit of the State of Arizona. At June 30, 2018,
the League reported the following amounts related to the pension plan to which it
contributes:
Statement of Net Position and
Statement of Activities
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension Expense

Governmental
Activities
$
2,060,976
295,194
139,265
120,262

Arizona State Retirement System
Plan Descriptions – League employees participate in the Arizona State Retirement
System (ASRS). The ASRS administers a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan; a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance
premium benefit (OPEB), and a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit longterm disability (OPEB). The Arizona State Retirement System Board governs the ASRS
according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS
issues a publicly available financial report that includes its financial statements and
required supplementary information. The report is available on its website at
www.azasrs.gov.
The OPEB is not included in the League’s financial statements due to the OPEB Liability
being immaterial to the League.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Benefits Provided – The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium
supplement, long-term disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefit
terms. Retirement benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly
compensation, and service credit as follows:
Before
July 1, 2011
Sum of years and age equals 80
10 years age 62
5 year age 50*
any years age 65

On or After
July 1, 2011
30 years age 55
25 years age 60
10 years age 62
5 years age 50*
any years age 65

Final average
salary is based on

Highest 36 Months
of last 120 months

Highest 60 months
of last 120 months

Benefit percentage
per year of service

2.1% to 2.3 %

2.1% to 2.3 %

Years of service
and age required
to receive benefit

* With actuarially reduced benefits

Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are
subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earnings.
Members with a membership date on or after September 13, 2013, are not eligible for
cost-of-living adjustments. Survivor benefits are payable upon a member’s death. For
retired members, the survivor benefit is determined by the retirement benefit option
chosen. For all other members, the beneficiary is entitled to the member’s account
balance that includes the member’s contributions and employer’s contributions, plus
interest earned.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Contributions – In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations
determine active member and employer contribution requirements. The combined active
member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits
employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2018, active ASRS members were
required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 10.90% of the
members’ annual covered payroll, and the League was required by statute to contribute
at the actuarially determined rate of 10.90% of the active members’ annual covered
payroll. In addition, the League was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially
determined rate of 9.17% of annual covered payroll of retired members who worked for
the League in positions that would typically be filled by an employee who contributes to
the ASRS. The League’s contributions to the pension plan for the year ended
June 30, 2018, were $143,194.
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the League paid all ASRS pension
contributions out of the General Fund.
Pension Liability – At June 30, 2018, the League reported a liability of $2,060,976 for
its proportionate share of the ASRS’ net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2017. The total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined using update procedures to roll forward the total
pension liability from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, to the measurement
date of June 30, 2017. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2017, reflects a change
in actuarial assumption for a decrease in loads for future potential permanent benefit
increases.
The League’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the League’s FY 2017
contributions. The League’s proportion measured as of June 30, 2017, was 0.01323%,
which was a decrease of 0.00028 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016.
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources – For the year ended
June 30, 2018, the League recognized pension expense for ASRS of $120,262. At
June 30, 2018, the League reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience
Change in Assumptions
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings
on Pension Plan Investments
Changes in Proportion and Differences Between League
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date
Total

$

$

89,513

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources
$
61,799
61,627

14,796

-

47,691
143,194
295,194

15,839
139,265

$

The $143,194 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions
resulting from the League contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2018.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to ASRS pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022
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$

Amount
(48,620)
84,948
23,815
(47,408)
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Actuarial Assumptions – The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the
total pension liability are as follows:
Actuarial Valuation Date
Actuarial Roll Forward Date
Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation
Discount Rate
Projected Salary Increases
Inflation
Permanent Benefit Increase
Mortality Rates

June 30, 2016
June 30, 2017
Entry Age Normal
Fair Value
8%
3 - 6.75%
3%
Included
1994 GAM Scale BB

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of
an actuarial study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2012.
The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS pension plan investments was
determined to be 8.70% using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
Target
Allocation

Asset Class
Equity
Fixed Income
Real Estate
Multi-Asset Class
Commodities
Total
Inflation
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return

58%
25
10
5
2
100%
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Real
Return

6.73%
3.70
4.25
3.41
3.84

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return

3.87%
0.91
0.42
0.17
0.08
5.45
3.25
8.70%
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NOTE 4

OTHER INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
D. Retirement Plans (Continued)
Arizona State Retirement System (Continued)
Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the ASRS total pension liability was
8%, which is less than the long-term expected rate of return of 8.70%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from
participating employers will be made based on the actuarially determined rates based on
the ASRS Board’s funding policy, which establishes the contractually required rate under
Arizona statutes. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.
Sensitivity of the League’s Proportionate Share of the ASRS Net Pension Liability
to Changes in the Discount Rate – The following table presents the League’s
proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 8%,
as well as what the League’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7%) or 1
percentage point higher (9%) than the current rate.
Current
Discount
Rate
(8%)

1% Decrease
(7%)
The League’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability

$

2,645,299

$

2,060,976

1% Increase
(9%)
$

1,572,725

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued ASRS financial report.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

LEAGUE OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS
SCHEDULE OF THE LEAGUE’S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET
PENSION LIABILITY AND CONTRIBUTIONS
ARIZONA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (ASRS) PLAN
2017 AND THREE YEAR PRIOR

Fiscal Year
(Measurement Date)
2018
(2017)

2017
(2016)

2016
(2015)

2015
(2014)

2014
(2013)**

League’s Proportion of the
Net Pension Liability
League’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability

0.013230%

0.013370%

0.012749%

0.011847%

0.012466%

$ 2,060,976

$ 2,158,052

$ 1,985,850

$ 1,753,013

$ 2,072,421

League’s Covered Payroll

$ 1,279,852

$ 1,219,254

$ 1,217,272

$ 1,152,870

N/A *

161.03%

177.00%

163.14%

152.06%

N/A *

69.92%

67.06%

68.35%

69.49%

2017
128,672

Fiscal Year
2016
$ 129,371

128,672

129,371

League’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of its Covered Payroll
Plan Fiduciary Net Positon as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability

2018
143,194

Contractually Required Contribution
Contributions in Relation to the Contractually
Required Contribution

$

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

$

League’s Covered Payroll

$ 1,438,882

$

143,194

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

-

9.95%

$

-

-

2015
127,877

$

127,877
$

-

2014
114,272
114,272

$

-

$ 1,279,852

$ 1,219,254

$ 1,217,272

$ 1,152,870

10.05%

10.61%

10.51%

9.91%

* Information was not available.
** Information prior to the June 30, 2013 measurement date was not available.
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$

$

57.28%

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS REPORT
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
CLAconnect.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
League of Arizona Cities and Towns
Phoenix, Arizona
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the League of Arizona
Cities and Towns (League), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the League’s basic financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated October 1, 2018.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the League of Arizona
Cities and Towns’ internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
League’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
League’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the League’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the League of Arizona Cities and Towns’
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
League’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the League’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

a
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
October 1, 2018
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
20 East Thomas Road, Suite 2300
Phoenix, AZ 85012
602-266-2248 | fax 602-266-2907
CLAconnect.com

October 16, 2018
Mr. Ken Strobeck, Executive Director
The League of Arizona Cities and Towns
1820 West Washington Street
Phoenix, Arizona 85007
Dear Mr. Strobeck:
Thank you for the opportunity to submit a quote to The League of Arizona Cities and Towns and its
component unit (The League), GFOAz, ACMA and AMCA to continue our relationship. This quote is to
perform the annual audit for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, 2020 and 2021. Our audits will be
completed in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards for GFOAz and ACMA; in
accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government Auditing Standards for the
League of Arizona Cities and Towns and its component unit; and we will perform a review in accordance
with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services issued by the American Institute of
Certified Public accountants for AMCA.
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA) is a top 10 accounting firm. We are a national professional services firm
delivering integrated wealth advisory, outsourcing, and public accounting capabilities to help enhance our
clients’ enterprise value and assist them in growing and managing their operations. Our professionals are
immersed in the industries they serve and have specialized knowledge of their operating and regulatory
environments. With more than 5,400 people, more than 110 U.S. locations, and a global affiliation, we
bring a wide array of solutions to help clients in all markets, foreign and domestic. CLA has been serving
governments and nonprofits in Arizona for more than 30 years and has previously served as the auditors
for The League, GFOAz and ACMA and conducted the previous reviews for AMCA.
CLA offers the credibility, reputation, and resources of a leading professional services firm — without
sacrificing the small‐firm touch. We bring uncommon levels of technical excellence, commitment, and
dedication to our clients, which have made us one of the most successful professional service firms
serving governmental and nonprofit entities. Our strong reputation for serving state and local government
units and nonprofit organizations provides the board confidence in their decision to select CLA as their
professional service provider.
Our national, industry, and local staffing model is adequately leveraged to provide quality service to the
organizations we serve at a competitive fee. We support and encourage internal advancement of our
professionals by encouraging our staff to select an industry focus. This means our staff, at all levels, bring
a level of passion, knowledge and experience to their chosen industry that advances the clients we serve
and in our opinion rivals that of our competitors.
The services we are proposing will be performed by industry professionals out of the Phoenix, Arizona
office. CLA is a professional services firm with locations all across the United States, yet maintains that
small firm feel. We will utilize audit professionals who have the local presence and knowledge of what is
happening within the state of Arizona. We understand that these four organizations are unique with unique
challenges and we have put a team together that has those specific skills necessary to serve your
organization.
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We often answer questions of our clients during the year and pride ourselves on being easy to reach and
returning calls quickly. We will answer your questions at no additional charge during the year as long as
no significant research is necessary. We will also work closely with you regarding any recommendations
that we may have to improve operating efficiencies and assist you in putting together a plan for
implementing them that meets your cost-benefit requirements.
We understand that you will provide us with the basic information required for our services and that you
are responsible for the accuracy and completeness of that information. We will advise you about
appropriate accounting principles and their application and will prepare your financial statements, but the
responsibility for the underlying records remains with you. This responsibility includes the maintenance of
adequate records and related internal control structure policies and procedures, the selection and
application of accounting principles, and the safeguarding of assets. We understand that your employees
will locate all supporting documentation selected by us for testing.
We understand that price in our current economy is a significant factor when selecting a firm to provide
professional services. At CLA, we don’t promise to be the lowest price, but we are committed to providing
high quality services that are noticeably different. Our prices are not always the lowest because we ensure
that you are provided qualified, experienced staff. Many accounting firms can cut prices by providing
entry level staff with little supervision and minimal partner participation. At CLA, you will receive a team
of auditors selected to fit your needs. We will ensure that the team is comprised of a highly experienced
senior and experienced staff to go along with any entry level accountants that may be assigned to the
engagement. You can be assured that the principal assigned to your audit will be materially involved
through out the process.
Based on our previous experience with the League, GFOAz, ACMA, and AMCA we are proposing the
following pricing for the next three years:

Year ended June 30, 2019
2020
2021

The
League
$ 11,000
11,220
11,390

MPC

Total
League

GFOAz

ACMA

$ 2,900
2,950
3,000

$ 13,900
14,170
14,390

$ 5,400
5,500
5,585

$ 5,400
5,500
5,585

AMCA
$ 3,560
3,630
3,685

Please note, that our proposed fees for the 2019 year include a 3% increase from the fiscal year 2018. We
did not increase fees the last two years. We are proposing small increases for the subsequent two years
(approximately 2% for 2020 and approximately 1.5% for 2021).
Thank you again for this opportunity to be of service to the League, GFOAz, ACMA and AMCA. If you
have any questions, please feel free to call.
Sincerely,

Dennis J. Osuch, CPA
Principal
602-604-3630
Dennis.Osuch@CLAconnect.com

Audit Costs for Fiscal Years Ending . . .
Heinfeld & Meech, Tucson
League
Property Corporation
ACMA

2001
$5,850
$2,500

2002
$5,850
$2,500
$2,750

2003
$5,850
$2,500

Lisa Lumbard & Assoc., Phoenix
League
Property Corporation
ACMA
GFOAz

2004
$6,000
$2,700
$2,700
$3,500

2005
$6,000
$2,700
$2,700
$2,800

2006
$6,000
$2,700
$2,700
$2,800

Cronstrom Osuch & Co, Scottsdale
League
Property Corporation
ACMA
GFOAz

2007
$8,550
$950
$2,850
$2,850

2008
$8,775
$975
$2,925
$2,925

2009
$9,000
$1,000
$3,000
$3,000

LarsenAllen, Mesa (formerly Cronstrom Osuch)
League
Property Corporation
ACMA
GFOAz

2010
$9,500
$1,500
$4,000
$4,000

2011
$9,750
$1,750
$4,250
$4,250

2012
$10,000
$2,000
$4,500
$4,500

CliftonLarsenAllen, Phoenix (formerly LarsenAllen)
League
Property Corporation
ACMA
GFOAz
AMCA (Review)

2013
$10,000
$2,000
$4,500
$4,500

2014
$10,250
$2,250
$4,750
$4,750
$3,000

2015
$10,500
$2,500
$5,000
$5,000
$3,300

CliftonLarsenAllen, Phoenix
League
Property Corporation
ACMA
GFOAz
AMCA (Review)

2016
$10,500
$2,500
$5,000
$5,000
$3,300

2017
$10,750
$2,750
$5,250
$5,250
$3,465

2018
$10,750
$2,750
$5,250
$5,250
$3,465

CliftonLarsenAllen, Phoenix **Proposed**
League
Property Corporation
ACMA
GFOAz
AMCA (Review)

2019
$11,000
$2,900
$5,400
$5,400
$3,560

2020
$11,220
$2,950
$5,500
$5,500
$3,630

2021
$11,390
$3,000
$5,585
$5,585
$3,685
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Agenda Item #7

League Director’s Report

Summary:

The League Executive Director will provide a brief update on additional
activities and issues of interest to the Executive Committee including
work with a coalition of interests opposing Proposition 126, the
Constitutional Amendment that bans sales taxes on all services.

Responsible Person:

Ken Strobeck

Attachment:

Prop 126 articles and Tweets
Information on NLC City Summit in Los Angeles

Dear Arizonans,
We the undersigned Arizona legislators and organizations often disagree on many issues, but
we stand together in opposition to Proposition 126, which is an effort to create a special-interest
carve-out in the state and local sales tax (TPT) base. Prop. 126 would codify a tax privilege for a
specific industry — the service industry — in our state constitution. That isn’t fair.
It is also unworkable.
By forever prohibiting sales taxes on some kinds of business activities, Prop. 126 would create
pressure to increase sales tax rates on other industries and raise income and property taxes.
Our economy is constantly changing, and future tax reforms may be needed to adjust our tax
code to those changes, but Prop. 126 would prevent Arizona from making adjustments that could
broaden the tax base and lower rates.
Prop. 126 picks winners and losers, creates an unlevel playing field, and isn’t right for Arizona.
We hope you will agree in November.
Signed,
Rep. John Allen

Sen. Nancy Barto

Rep. Mark Finchem

Rep. Vince Leach

Rep. David Livingston

Rep. Darin Mitchell

Rep. Bob Thorpe

Rep. Isela Blanc

Sen. David Bradley

Rep. Mark Cardenas

Rep. Ken Clark

Rep. Kirsten Engel

Rep. Mitzi Epstein

Rep. Charlene Fernandez

Sen. Steve Farley

AFSCME Local 2960

Americans for Prosperity – Arizona

Arizona Center for Economic Progress

Arizona Education Association

Children’s Action Alliance

Concerned Veterans for America

Free Enterprise Club of Arizona

Friends of the Arizona School Boards Association

Grand Canyon Institute

League of Arizona Cities and Towns

LIBRE Initiative

Save Our Schools Arizona

Stand for Children Arizona

Valley Interfaith Project

Prop. 126 cuts short a necessary
discussion about Arizona tax reform
Robert Robb, Arizona Republic
Published 6:07 a.m. MT Oct. 10, 2018 | Updated 10:16 a.m. MT Oct. 10, 2018

Opinion: Arizona needs to discuss broadening the consumption tax
base. But a flawed constitutional amendment isn't the right context for
doing it.
Proposition 126 is intended to shut the door on an
important discussion before it has a chance to get
started. And it may have even more devastating
consequences than that.
Bankrolled by the realtors, Prop. 126 would amend
the state Constitution to prohibit the imposition of a
sales tax on services.

(Photo: urfinguss, Getty Images/iStockphoto)

For the most part, sales taxes in Arizona are limited to
the final sale of a retail good. If you go to a barber
shop, a sales tax isn’t charged on your haircut. But if
you purchase some styling gel while there, a sale tax
would be tacked on to that purchase. The haircut is
considered a service. The styling gel is the final sale
of a retail good.

Consumption taxes are more compatible with economic growth than income or property taxes. But
Arizona has increased the tax rate on retail goods to a troublingly high level.

Big hikes in the sales tax on goods
In 1980, the sales tax rate in Arizona was pretty uniformly 5 percent: 4 percent for the state and 1
percent for the city in which the transaction occurred.
Today, the sales tax rate exceeds 9 percent in many Valley cities, and 10 percent in one,
Guadalupe.
If government wants more money, an increase in the sales tax has almost always been the course
with the best chance of political acceptance. The state rate has increased to 5.6 percent. The rate in
most cities has more than doubled. And counties have been permitted to get into the sales tax
business.
The trend continues. This election, both Flagstaff and Mesa have sales tax increases on the ballot.

Consumption tax base needs broadening
The state badly needs a discussion about broadening the base of the consumption tax.
Some, including me, argue that the goal should be a net increase in state revenue to quicken the
pace of restoring K-12 funding to pre-recession levels.

But even if tax reform were to be constrained by revenue neutrality, just raising what the state
currently collects, the discussion is critically important.
The current high rate on retail goods is at least mildly economically distorting. And it creates
difficulties for the stability of government finances.
Goods constitutes a declining percentage of economic activity. Services an increasing percentage.
Expanding the tax base to include some services would enable government revenue to more closely
track the economy, reducing volatility and easing pressure on rate increases.
But expanding the sales tax to include services isn’t the only way to expand the consumption tax
base. Another way would be to abolish the existing sales tax and corporate income tax, and replace
both with a business gross receipts tax.
I once described the existing sales tax on the final sale of retail goods as the reliable mule of public
finance. But the state has ridden that mule as far and as hard as we can. A discussion of broadening
the consumption tax base shouldn’t be ducked or precluded by the passage of a constitutional
amendment.

The existing sales tax base could be at risk
Constitutional amendments often have unintended consequences, and Prop. 126 may have a doozy.
Prop. 126 prohibits any new or increased sales taxes on services. But it doesn’t include any legal
definition of “services” or create a legal demarcation between a good and a service.
As the Grand Canyon Institute points out in a new study, although the current sales tax is generally
limited to the final sale of a retail good, it does apply to things that could arguably be considered
services instead. That includes utilities, restaurants and bars, and the lease of personal property.
The restaurant category is a good illustration of the lack of what the lawyers call a bright line
between goods and services. At the end of the meal, the bill you get, and on which sales taxes are
owed, in part reflects the price of food consumed. But it also reflects the value of various services
rendered: taking your order, cooking the food, bringing it to your table, and cleaning up afterwards.
The institute estimates that as much as a third of the existing sales tax base could be described as
consisting of services, rendering them exempt from any new or increased sales tax. That means, for
example, that the sales tax the Legislature approved to replace the existing dedicated education
sales tax, established by Prop. 301 but expiring in 2021, would produce a third less of the revenue
expected.

Legislature couldn't fix this problem
The Legislature couldn’t fix this. It would require litigation to establish the contours of the problem,
and another constitutional amendment to remedy it.
Arizona needs to have a serious discussion about broadening the consumption tax base. But a
constitutional amendment, particularly an ambiguous and potentially risky one, isn’t the context in
which to have it.
Reach Robb at robert.robb@arizonarepublic.com.
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Voter approval of Prop. 126 will cut education funding and
more
Oct. 10, 2018 – Phoenix – If voters approve Proposition
(Prop.) 126 on Nov. 6, the state will lose $250 million
annually in education funding and counties will have a
dramatic shortfall in money for road improvements.The
Protect Arizona Taxpayers Act, 2018, amends the Arizona
Constitution to restrict state and municipal governments
http://grandcanyoninstitute.org/voter-approval-of-prop-126-will-cut-education-funding-and-more/

1/5

10/11/2018

Voter approval of Prop. 126 will cut education funding and more - Grand Canyon Institute

from imposing any taxes on services which were not
already in place as of Dec. 31, 2017.One consequence of
Prop. 126 is the elimination of any taxes on services
included within sales tax measures that are scheduled to
be renewed in the future. Prop. 126 would reduce revenue
by a third from Prop. 301, the 0.6 cent education sales tax
set for renewal in 2021. A similar problem occurs for
counties that use the sales tax to fund road
improvements. Maricopa and Pima counties have
measures expiring in 2025 and 2026, respectively. If Prop.
126 passes, any renewal of those taxes will lose almost 40
percent of their revenue, likely meaning they will seek to
raise the tax on goods even higher.
“Voters should not be fooled. The legislature needed a
two-thirds vote to reauthorize the education sales tax
because it is considered a new tax. As such, Prop. 126
would strip anything designated as a service from the
renewed Prop. 301,” said Dave Wells, research director
with the Grand Canyon Institute (GCI) and co-author of
the policy paper Consequences of Prop. 126: $250 million
cut to Education, Future cuts to Transportation Funding
and Higher Taxes on Goods.
“More broadly, passage of the proposition would limit
opportunities for the state and municipal governments to
increase revenue by expanding the sales tax to include
more services at some point in the future. Currently,
Arizona exempts most services from taxation.”

Comparison: Current K-12 education sales tax income
versus revenue under Prop. 126.

Rejection of the ballot measure leaves open the
opportunity for taxing services – a broad category of
http://grandcanyoninstitute.org/voter-approval-of-prop-126-will-cut-education-funding-and-more/
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items that could be taxed individually such as child care,
nail salons, or ﬁnancial services, or as an entire category.
“In fact, we could lower the state sales tax rate from 5.6
percent to 3.2 percent by including currently exempt
services and still bring in $600 million more for education
based on 2017 data from the Ofﬁce of Economic
Research and Analysis & Arizona Department of
Revenue,” Wells said.
Currently, the state sales tax includes goods and some
services but together they have become a smaller
portion of the economy. As a consequence, the state
sales tax brings in $1 billion less in revenue than it did two
decades ago.
“Lawmakers have consistently reduced taxes and
increased tax exemptions over the past 25 years, leading
to a reduction in state revenues by $4 billion annually,”
says George Cunningham, chair of the Grand Canyon
Institute. “GCI has taken a position against Prop. 126
because Arizona can’t afford to permanently close the
door on additional sources of revenue needed for
education, roads, public safety and other essential
services.”
For more information, contact:

Dave Wells, Research Director
dwells@azgci.org, (602) 595-1025 Ext. 2
Amy Pedotto, Communications Manager
apedotto@azgci.org, 602-595-1025, Ext. 3

Related News & Research
Consequences of Prop. 126: $250 million cut to Education, Future cuts to Transportation
Funding and Higher Taxes on Goods
Prop. 126 will trim the renewal of the education sales … Read more
http://grandcanyoninstitute.org/voter-approval-of-prop-126-will-cut-education-funding-and-more/
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PROGRAM
BETTER LEADERS. BETTER CITIES. BETTER NATION.
YOU HAVE THE POWER.
City Summit is the only opportunity for local officials—both elected and staff—to learn about the
issues affecting local government and expand their professional network. The conference
provides education for leadership development, meaningful discussions on common local-level
problems and new best practices to address the trends affecting cities.

SCHEDULE AT-A-GLANCE
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 6, 2018
Registration & Ask NLC Open (Afternoon)

WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2018
Registration & Ask NLC Open (All Day)
New Member and First Time Attendee Breakfast (Early Morning)
NLC University Seminars (All Day)
Host City Mobile Workshops (Morning and Afternoon)
Federal Advocacy Committee Meetings (Afternoon)
Expo Hall Welcome Reception (Early Evening)
Constituency Group Meetings and Events (Evening)

THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2018
Registration & Ask NLC Open (All Day)
NLC Board of Directors Meeting (Early Morning)
Solution Sessions (Morning)
NLC University Seminars (Morning)
Host City Mobile Workshops (Morning)
NLC Advisory Council Meeting (Morning)
Expo Hall and Market Square Open (All Day)
NLC Spotlight Theater Open (All Day)
NLC Resolutions Committee Meeting (Morning)

*Attendee Lunch in Expo Hall (Lunchtime)
Opening General Session (Afternoon)
Conference Workshops (Afternoon)
NLC Nominating Committee Public Hearing (Late Afternoon)
State League and Additional Events (Evening)
Constituency Group Events (Evening)

FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 9, 2018
Registration & Ask NLC Open (All Day)
General Session (morning)
Expo Hall and Market Square Open (All Day)
Conference Workshops (All Day)
NLC Spotlight Theater Open (All Day)
*Attendee Lunch in Expo Hall (Lunchtime)
Member Council Meetings (afternoon)
State League and Additional Events (Evening)

SATURDAY, NOVEMBER 10, 2018
Registration & Ask NLC Open (Morning)
Conference Workshops (Morning)
Closing General Session and Delegates Luncheon (Lunchtime)
Annual Business Meeting (Afternoon)
Host City Closing Event
*Indicates conference-wide meal, included in the cost of registration

GET THE TOOLS YOU NEED TO BE A BETTER
LEADER
CONFERENCE WORKSHOPS
Presentations, panels and discussions focused on the common issues cities face—from
homeless and affordable housing to the future of work and a skilled workforce.

NLC UNIVERSITY SEMINARS
Half-day or full-day training on navigating the duties of a public official. Delegates who complete
training receive credits towards a professional development certificate.

GENERAL SESSIONS
Get inspired during exciting main stage programming, featuring motivational stories from wellknown national leaders.

HOST CITY MOBILE WORKSHOPS
Exclusive to NLC’s fall conference, city leaders will get a chance to see how their peers
successfully govern and innovate during various workshops, showcasing successful projects
and programs around the host city.

NETWORKING EVENTS
There are plenty of opportunities for you to meet and build relationships with other local leaders
and build partnerships with corporate partners. Whether it’s the welcome reception in the Expo
Hall, constituency group events, federal advocacy committee and member council meetings,
state municipal league activities and the closing reception.

YOUTH PROGRAM
Join hundreds of your peers from different states to network, attend workshops and meetings,
and explore Los Angeles, California! Learn More.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 2, 2018

Agenda Item #8

Resolutions of Appreciation

Summary:

Resolutions of Appreciation for Mayor Jay Tibshraeny of Chandler and
Mayor Satish Hiremath of Oro Valley are enclosed for action by the
Executive Committee.

Responsible Person:

President Christian Price

Attachment:

Resolutions of Appreciation

Action Requested:

Approval

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR
Jay Tibshraeny
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE LEAGUE
OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO JAY TIBSHRAENY FOR HIS DEDICATED SERVICE TO LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IN ARIZONA.
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY served the citizens of the City of Chandler for eight years
on the council and sixteen years during two separate terms as Mayor; and
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY was a good friend to cities and towns and a trusted advocate
for local control during his eight years in the Arizona State Senate from 2003-2011; and
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY has provided dedicated service to the League as a member
of the Executive Committee from 2011-2019; and
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY served as an officer of the League from 2012-2018 beginning
with the post of Treasurer in 2012 and culminating in service as President from 2016-2018; and
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY served on or chaired the League Resolutions Committee,
the League Nominating Committee and other special League committees; and
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY was an active participant in Arizona and National League
of Cities meetings and conferences as a speaker and a presiding officer; and
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY made frequent trips to the Capitol at the request of the
League to meet with Legislators and the Governor and was always available to provide support,
counsel and advice to League staff,
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the appreciation of the League of Arizona Cities
and Towns be extended to JAY TIBSHRAENY for his dedicated service to local government in
Arizona and to the League.

RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION FOR
Satish Hiremath
A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE APPRECIATION OF THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF THE LEAGUE
OF ARIZONA CITIES AND TOWNS TO SATISH HIREMATH FOR HIS DEDICATED SERVICE TO LOCAL
GOVERNMENT IN ARIZONA.
WHEREAS, SATISH HIREMATH has served the citizens of the Town of Oro Valley as
Mayor since 2010; and
WHEREAS, SATISH HIREMATH has provided outstanding service to the League as a
member of the Executive Committee from 2017-2018; and
WHEREAS, SATISH HIREMATH was an active participant in League meetings and
Conferences as a speaker and a presiding officer; and
WHEREAS, SATISH HIREMATH was actively engaged with legislators about League issues
of importance to cities and towns; and
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the grateful appreciation of the League of
Arizona Cities and Towns be extended to SATISH HIREMATH for his service to municipal
government in Arizona and to the League.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
Friday, November 2, 2018

Agenda Item #9

Life Member Nomination

Summary:

By tradition, past presidents of the League are granted Life Membership
by the Executive Committee. The nomination for Jay Tibshraeny is
enclosed for action by the Executive Committee.

Responsible Person:

President Christian Price

Attachment:

Life Member Resolution

Action Requested:

Approval

LIFE MEMBERSHIP RESOLUTION FOR
JAY TIBSHRAENY
A RESOLUTION CONFERRING LIFE MEMBERSHIP IN THE LEAGUE OF ARIZONA
CITIES AND TOWNS TO FORMER PRESIDENT JAY TIBSHRAENY.
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY provided outstanding leadership as
President of the League from 2016-2018; and
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY began his service to the League as a
member of the Executive Committee in 2011 and served as Treasurer and Vice
President prior to assuming the office of President in 2016; and
WHEREAS, JAY TIBSHRAENY served the City of Chandler for eight years
on the council and for sixteen years during two terms as Mayor which exemplifies
his dedication to local government and to his City;
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Committee
bestows Life Membership in the League of Arizona Cities and Towns upon JAY
TIBSHRAENY.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
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Agenda Item #10

Discuss Executive Director Ken Strobeck’s Performance Evaluation

Summary:

The Executive Committee may meet in executive session to discuss
Executive Director Ken Strobeck’s performance evaluation and
employment status.

Responsible Person:

President Christian Price

Action Requested:

Discussion / Possible Action

Additional Informational Materials
Not Part of the Agenda
League Budget Report
Property Corporation Budget Report

League of Arizona Cities & Towns
FY 2018-2019 Budget vs. Actual
July through September 2018
Jul - Sep 18
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 · Affiliate Group Contribution
4005 · Annual Conference
4010 · Dues
4020 · Miscellaneous
4030 · Risk Pool
4035 · Seminars & Meetings

Budget

$ Over Budget

% of Budget

11,845.83
485,020.87
1,746,848.00
6,700.74
38,942.14
8,845.00

136,950.00
400,000.00
2,057,441.00
11,000.00
151,000.00
30,000.00

-125,104.17
85,020.87
-310,593.00
-4,299.26
-112,057.86
-21,155.00

8.6%
121.3%
84.9%
60.9%
25.8%
29.5%

5,000.00
5,551.99

67,500.00
25,000.00

-62,500.00
-19,448.01

7.4%
22.2%

2,308,754.57

2,878,891.00

-570,136.43

80.2%

330,711.86
141,463.33

230,000.00
550,000.00

100,711.86
-408,536.67

143.8%
25.7%

5015 · Capital Outlay

1,116.85

20,000.00

-18,883.15

5.6%

5030 · Equipment Rental & Maintenance
5035 · Executive Committee
5050 · Insurance
5055 · Postage & Shipping
5057 · PR & Communications
5060 · Printing

974.90
0.00
3,885.25
286.41
8,092.50
0.00

14,000.00
8,000.00
8,000.00
6,000.00
74,000.00
10,000.00

-13,025.10
-8,000.00
-4,114.75
-5,713.59
-65,907.50
-10,000.00

7.0%
0.0%
48.6%
4.8%
10.9%
0.0%

4016 · Partnership Programs
4040 · Interest Income
Total Income
Expense
5005 · Annual Conference (Expense)
5010 · Benefits

5065 · Professional Services
5065-1 · Accounting Services
5065-3 · Legal Services
5065-2 · Contract Lobbying & Consulti...
Total 5065 · Professional Services
5070 · Rent
5071 · Salaries
5075 · Seminars and Meetings
5085 · Subscriptions & Dues
5090 · Supplies
5095 · Telecommunications
5100 · Travel
5115 · Prop Corp-Bldg Improvement Fund
5120 · Reserve Fund Expenditure
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

6,257.56
1,250.00
23,000.00

48,000.00
35,000.00
100,000.00

-41,742.44
-33,750.00
-77,000.00

13.0%
3.6%
23.0%

30,507.56

183,000.00

-152,492.44

16.7%

26,250.00
357,027.03
1,747.93

105,000.00
1,450,000.00
48,000.00

-78,750.00
-1,092,972.97
-46,252.07

25.0%
24.6%
3.6%

35,798.16
9,934.49

62,000.00
38,000.00

-26,201.84
-28,065.51

57.7%
26.1%

3,523.03
6,475.82
0.00
0.00

30,000.00
25,000.00
10,000.00
180,000.00

-26,476.97
-18,524.18
-10,000.00
-180,000.00

11.7%
25.9%
0.0%
0.0%

957,795.12

3,051,000.00

-2,093,204.88

31.4%

1,350,959.45

-172,109.00

1,523,068.45

-784.9%

1,350,959.45

-172,109.00

1,523,068.45

-784.9%

Property Corporation

FY 2018-2019 Budget vs. Actual
July through September 2018
Jul - Sep 18
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
4000 · Rental Income
4005 · Miscellaneous
4010 · Interest

Budget

$ Over Budget

% of Budget

33,041.40
0.00
9.13

119,400.00
1,500.00
50.00

-86,358.60
-1,500.00
-40.87

27.7%
0.0%
18.3%

Total Income

33,050.53

120,950.00

-87,899.47

27.3%

Expense
5000 · Maintenance Services/Agreements
5015 · Utilities
5020 · Repairs and Maintenance
5025 · Operating Expenses
5030 · Accounting and Auditing
5035 · Insurance
5040 · Capital Outlay

10,735.71
6,814.26
424.00
377.91
770.00
2,723.00
325.00

35,000.00
34,000.00
12,000.00
5,000.00
7,400.00
5,500.00
21,000.00

-24,264.29
-27,185.74
-11,576.00
-4,622.09
-6,630.00
-2,777.00
-20,675.00

30.7%
20.0%
3.5%
7.6%
10.4%
49.5%
1.5%

Total Expense

22,169.88

119,900.00

-97,730.12

18.5%

10,880.65

1,050.00

9,830.65

1,036.3%

10,880.65

1,050.00

9,830.65

1,036.3%

Net Ordinary Income
Net Income

